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Church Vision Statement
To glorify God
as a cell-based church
passionately multiplying disciples

locally and worldwide
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Cell Vision Statement

Cell groups are here to glorify God as we grow spiritually and seek to fulfill the Great
Commission through body life. To achieve this purpose each group member aims at
practicing the following:

. Love and accept one another unconditionally

. Pray for one another

. Be accountable to group members for Christian living

. Serve and build up each other by using spiritual gifts

. Learn and live out God's Word

.Complete D & E

. Lead people to Christ as a team

. The things said in a cell are confidential and will not be shared outside the group
except with zone pastor and zone supervisor
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When the group reaches a steady 12, it will reproduce to multiply the blessing to others.
As you grow and are led by God, you may begin to lead and shepherd a cell group.
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

=&l Hoytson Wong

The year 2021 Board of Directors saw a few
changes. Paul Zhang took a sabbatical
after serving faithfully as secretary for many
years. Richard Liang from Mandarin
congregation and Leo Lou from Cantonese
were added. Hoytson Wong, TK Wong,
Conrad Chan, Simon Tse, Edwin Ge and
Michael Luu remained on the board. The
pastoral staff consisted of Rev. Chan, Rev.
Cheung, Rev. Lee, Rev. Ren, Rev. Tham,
Pastor Kim and Pastor Poon formed the
balance of the Executive Board.

COVID1? impacted us tfremendously. We
have to resort to online worship throughout
the year. Although for a brief period, the
church was allowed to hold in-person worship
with many restrictions and reduced number
of participants. A hybrid model of worship
was employed for a short while. Of course, all
other activities such as Sunday School,
Fellowship, Cell group meetings etc., had to
be conducted online. Retreat and picnic
were again cancelled. Even though we
could not meet in person due to the
pandemic, the Bible reminded us to have
fellowship with each other. For example; “But
if we walk in light, as he is in the light, we
have fellowship with one another, and the
blood of Jesus, his Son, purifies us from all sin”
1 John 1:7; “"And let us consider how we may
spur one another on toward love and good
deeds, not giving up meeting tfogether, as
some are in the habit of doing, but
encouraging one another—and all the more
as you see the Day approaching,” Heb. 10:24
-25; and “Two are better than one, because
they have a better return for their labour..."”
Ecc. 4:9-12. Therefore we strongly
recommend and encourage brothers and

2021 Annual Report EFERE
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

=&l Hoytson Wong

sisters to have fellowship as soon as the rules
and regulations allow.

Our demand for internet speed was
exponentially increased due to all the online
services. Hence, upgrade was inevitable to
accommodate this demand. Even though
we have saftisfied our need for now, we are
continually looking to improve and upgrade
for future growth. We fruly appreciate and
commend the efforts and energy afforded
by the brothers and sisters who are selflessly
serving to accommodate the church’'s
needs.

Just prior to the pandemic, we were studying
the feasibility of setting up a Human
Resources Department. However, after a
thorough and extensive study, as well as
heeding the industry recommendation
(suggests with at least 50 employees), we
decided that our church would not need
one, at least not now.

Praise God! We've been blessed abundantly
in finance. Every year we managed ftfo
achieve a balanced budget. Although
nearly every year, we needed to campaign
a bit near the end of year due to our
perception of impending deficit. This year,
our bank accounts maintained a healthy
deposit of more than $2M.

God blessed us not just financially, but also
provided with pastors, among other blessings,
to shepherd us. However, a few of our
pastors were approaching refirement. We
could not afford to have them retired at the
same time and creating a vacuum. So we

2021 Annual Report EFERE
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=&l Hoytson Wong

must plan early and carefully to achieve the
best scenario. Please pray with us for God'’s
blessings and give us wisdom to accomplish
this task.

Near the vyear-end, the membership
approved a revision of our constitution in
order to abide with the government require-
ment. We must thank the revision committee
for their effort on completing this task.

Personally I've learned a valuable lesson on
prayer. Early in the year | lost my dear brother
to lung cancer. When he was diagnosed with
this ferrible disease, | dedicated myself to
pray for him. | fashioned myself after the
persistent widow (Luk. 18: 1-8), and prayed for
him numerous times every day. When his
condition would not improve, but gefting
worse, | imitated Abraham and Jacob,
among others, to barter and plead with God
(Gen. 18; 32: 22-31). However, all these efforts
resulted to no avail. After a valiant battle with
the malady, God fook him to heaven. For a
very long time | was sad, confused, and
discouraged. | couldn’t understand why God
would bless me so many areas, yet when |
needed Him desperately, He then turned his
back on me. | was in denial. | questioned
God. | was even mad at Him. Only after a
very long tfime, | came to accept the fact
that my brother was gone to be with the
Lord. | accepted that God's thoughts were
not my thoughts, and His ways were higher
than my ways (1sa.55:8-9).

| learned to frust and obey God (Jer. 17:7-8;
Pro. 3:5-6). | learned to give thanks in all
“circumstances (1 Thes. 5:18). My wish is to be
able to utter the words of 2 Tim. 4:7, “I have
fought the good fight, | have finished the
race, | have kept the faith”. Praise the Lord!

2021 Annual Report EFERE
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F{E4EMERES SENIOR PASTOR REPORT

BRI 24 Ef Rev. Fanco Chan

Never thought that this pandemic would last
over two years, and that we could only
reopen in-person worship in October 021. The
rest of the church functions sfill had be
online. It won't be a surprise if someone said
we have to wait until the second half of next
year before we could fully resume in-person
meetings. As | look back, early last year, we
were busy with the preparation and fransition
infto an online model. The biggest changes
would be how we run staff meetings. In the
past, we spent a lot of time dealing with
administration and coordination of church
ministries. The online model made us simplify
a lot of ministries, and we had more time for
spiritual sharing and to practice discerning
God’'s will together. We also spent time
exploring possible changes of ministry models
and direction after the pandemic. All these
helped us to build better relationships and
bond as a team.

After some fime of discussion, the pastoral
staff decided to reopen in-person worship
with all three congregations at almost the
same fime slot in different locations. Sunday
School remained online. Children would
have to wait till the pandemic eased down
to come back safely. When the majority of
the congregatfion comes back, we could
resume in-person Sunday School in the same
time arrangement before the pandemic. We
will continue to have hybrid worship
thereafter. As for other ministries, we would
like to continue some of them online, such as
frainings, committee meetings, online
missions, and add online prayer meetings on
top of in-person prayer meetings.

By the end of the year, we had resumed
in-person worship for three months. About a
quarter of the congregations came back,
which was lower than our expectations. We
understood it was hard for those who lived far
in distance to return home after worship to be
on time for online Sunday School. It was hard
for families with children as the program was
not available for children yet. And it was

2021 Annual Report EFERE
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SENIOR PASTOR REPORT

BRI 24 Ef Rev. Fanco Chan

hard for seniors to arrange transporto-
fion. And for some, there was a fear of
infection. All these were frue and reasona-
ble. However, as | meditated on these, | saw
some spiritual challenges.

Fear was an emotion that didn't reflect our
spirifual condition. As a matter of fact, fear is
a gift from God to raise our attention to
danger and challenges. In this way, it helped
us to prepare and reminded us to furn fo rely
on God. Meanwhile, when we spend time to
reflect on the cause and response of our fear,
it helped us understand our personal value
systems and spiritual condifions. However,
many people unconsciously set their own
perspective as the standard to judge
others. They forgot to listen and understand
other people to prevent misunderstandings
and conflicts. They forgot to sympathize and
support other people for mutual growth.
Eventually, many became very judgmental
and damaged our unity in Christ. We saw this
happening among Christian and churches.

Some people would say that we shouldn’t
have fears, and even that Christians shouldn’t
fear death. It is truth that we found eternal
life and assurance in Christ, but this doesn’t
mean that we were ready to face
death. Our longing for being with families
and friends demonstrated our love.
Protecting ourselves was a way to love
ourselves and others. Sometimes, it was not
that we fear death. It was taking good care
of the life that God gave us properly.

Some may say that fear indicated that we
were not willing to sacrifice for God. This was
an interesting saying. | observed that many
Christian loved God faithfully. They were
willing to sacrifice their fime, money, and
gave the best for God. However, the way of
sacrifice was to contribute or give up their
rights and privileges. Not many were wiling
to suffer for God. When we read the bible,
we noticed that so many people suffered for
God, and that they determined and

2021 Annual Report EFERE
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SENIOR PASTOR REPORT

BRI 24 Ef Rev. Fanco Chan

Somehow

prepared to suffer for God.
people began to put sacrifice and
faithfulness together, while suffering was

never in their consideration. When Christ
Jesus incarnated, he gave up his heavenly
honor and power. He loved us so much that
he carried our sins and died on the
cross. Jesus become our model. We are not
saying we should torture ourselves for any
cause. Instead, we are to be prepared and
willing to suffer for God. We shouldn’t worry
about the possibility that we will have to suffer
because it is the leading from God. Each
person may be led to something
different. Besides, with a different perspective
and spirituality, people would see the same
situation differently.

Many people said we shouldn't waste the
opportunity to grow during fthis
pandemic. When God dallowed this
pandemic to happen, there must be
something we could learn.  During this
pandemic, grasp the opportunity to
experience God, to serve God, to share the
gospel, to reflect our spirituality in our lives.

Lastly, three of our pastors are approaching
retrement and we need to recruit
replacements. This surely will affect the future
of the church. Please pray for the direction
of the retiring pastors, the recruitment of new
pastors and a smooth fransition.

“The LORD is my rock, my fortress and my
deliverer; my God is my rock, in whom | take
refuge, my shield and the horn of my
salvation, my stronghold.” (Psalm 18:2)
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BEZEET CANTONESE MINISTRY

BRI 24 Ef Rev. Fanco Chan

As we entered the second year of the
pandemic, we kind of got used to the online

model for worship, cel, and prayer
meeting. This year, we also had our retreat
online with Rev. Johnny Wong (who was from
Edmonton) as our speaker.

As more people were vaccinated, the
government removed some of the restrictions
in the summer. Taking this opportunity, we
held an outdoor baptism by sprinkling water
in the parking lot with nine candidates and
over forty in attendance. This was our first
outdoor baptism. It was also the first in-person
meefting since the pandemic. As we began
to have hybrid worship in October, we were
able to have an indoor baptfism with
sprinkling again in December with three
candidates. There was also one person who
fransferred her membership to
GCGC. Though cell groups had not returned
to in-person meeting, many cells did take the
opportunity to meet outdoors or for dinners
when the government allowed this to
happen in the summer.

As we ran the Sunday School online, we tried
a new model to form study groups with
members from the same cell. We tried this
model for three terms and the outcome was
very positive. This motivated cell members to
join Sunday School as a group, facilitating
deeper spiritual sharing within the cell.

Though there were restrictions for people to
enter Canada, there are sfill many Hong
Kong people planning to come. We had
some Hong Kongers join cell. Through our
online Hong Kongers workshop, we
oufreached fo many. Some indicated that
they will come visit us upon their arrival, and
some of them actually did visit us. Looking
into 2022, we pray that more brothers and
sisters will team up to grasp the opportunity to
serve and evangelize to the new wave of
immigrants from Hong Kong.
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#A1H 355 Deacon Darius Fok

The theme of Grace Chinese Gospel Church
for 2021 was “Discipleship and
Equipping the Saints: Calling to Rooting and
Maturing in Truth”. Through four kinds of
worship sermons, the Cantonese
Congregation was encouraged to answer to
God'’s calling for growth and equipping using
spiritual gifts, serving, and daily walk with Him.
The categories included Christian living,
Mission, helping the poor, Social Concern
and Baptism, and it also included our 31
Church Anniversary in June. Throughout the
year, we had two guest ministers and our
own pastors as speakers.

Being under the government guidance to
adjust to the needs of the pandemic, our
worship services were conducted online until
October when a few members started
participating in the in-person worship while
online viewing continued. Our facilities
allowed sixty seats for socially distanced
assembly, which required the participants fo
register ahead of time. Since the October
in-person worship services were a part of our
frial, we needed to observe the actual
number of participants and assemble a
serving team. Hopefully the conditions of the
pandemic would improve in 2022 to allow
more in-person participation so that we could
worship and praise God wholeheartedly.
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2021 Sunday School — our online zoom classes

Purpose: the focus for this year was to use
‘small groups of 3 to 5’ to enable learning of
Biblical truths through in-class discussion
which provided opportunities for sharing and
communication of ideas. We also
encouraged the continued practices of
God'’s reality through our experiences outside
the classroom.

Attendance: During these three terms of
studying ‘the Gospel of Matthew’ and
‘Calling is the Armival of God's Edict’, the
average attendance is around 100 to 120,
with 6 to 13 in the other classes.

Gospel Class (I trust in a more brilliant life) —
Level 1

Focus: through songs, testimonies, and
discussions about faith, seekers can under-
stand the gospel.

Instructors: Winnie Ma, Kayson Ko, Leo Lou, Iris
Au Yeung

Baptismal Class — Level 2

Focus: to help believers understand the basic
doctrines of Christian faith.

Instructor: Rev. Fanco Chan

The Sermon on the Mount of the Gospel of
Matthew — Level 3

Focus: Using the small group format, we
aimed at applying the truth of the Sermon on
the Mount. We also fried fo reinforce the
application by practicing with fellow learners
outside the classroom.

Instructors: Rev. David Lee, Rev. Danny
Cheung

2021 Annual Report EE®RE
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RIZTIER - IEREINARTHRAGHEER -
—EBBEREBREEETP -

EED  RXESHWED - AR - [ 4EFES T

MAHEE — Level 3

MBI ANBEL PR AELNER LY
Al AP B BN ; B ARL
FERABABSNEG ; HEBPILER
AR E AR AN B B HERIR -

RN . FEBEWED
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The Golden Age: Revelation of Bible
Characters — Level 3

Focus: through different Bible characters, we
learned God's will and thus how to lead a life
pleasing to God and beneficial o others.
Instructors: Viola Tse and Wei Yee Tin

Old Testament Survey — Level 3

Focus: Through the study of OT history, we
learned about Bible fruths and teachings,
including God’s attfributes. Through the
experiences of Israelites, we learned how to
improve our relafionship with God to learn
about basic knowledge of the OT and fo
improve our interest in learning.

Instructor: Rev. David Lee

‘Watch the Lord's deeds’ in the Gospel of
Matthew — Level 3

Focus: Using the small group of 3 to 5 model,
we learned about Jesus’ supernatural power,
so we can reflect on how to experience and
respond fo His wonderful deeds. We also
helped each other outside our classroom to
practice what we learned.

Instructor: Rev. Danny Cheung, Rev. Fanco
Chan, and Rodney Ho

New Testament Survey — Level 3

Focus: Through the study of the Israelites’ his-
tory, we learned the main teachings of the
New Testament. We also learned about
God'’s attributes, how to improve our relation-
ship with God through the experiences of the
lsraelites, and to increase our basic
knowledge about the New Testament and
our interest in reading.

Instructor: Rev. David Lee
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B IHIX Ginny Zhou

MRS FEEERN - Level 3

#E T =hpE . WBEEEREN - DIERREER
BEER  EREFERFELEERH TG
FITERYEnn - AR fEan AV PREAI R & - B2 1N
WemEkm - ERENARTHAEHEE
By —EREARBRELED -

BN SRRELWEN - BREIERNED - @453

EEFE . HERAILEMH - Level 3
ZREC AR BAIECI - S SRR WA ER
MREZRHE - BEBLRNES - SBNH
Al BBEREHBEEMESF -

BN FEEWED - SRR BN

FEmeE 52 - Level 3

BB -—hRENEEEN  —RETSVRE
TR - RBUWEEREI - WE - NERES
mAa—  T/NAERTEERLR -

EED . PREIRKED - SREREEALEN - B AN

2021 FIBEER

« BRIEHAHELE2021FEE : TFIFIA
=R EEEEILRERRHAED g

« BT HEBEHERARRRNERE - BRHEE
SHEREE -

o REBDHBLWHKEAER "=hmEF . B L
FTHENBELN  REESHENRRAES
ERXAMAZENHES - T ERERA - LFE
RUBRE - BE BB HKTIFHERREE
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‘People being sent’” of the Gospel of
Matthew — Level 3

Focus: Using the small group style of 3 to 5,
aiming to learn the fruth, we learned in our
classroom about the mission of Jesus’
disciples, trying to understand the challenges
and problems involved, in order to finish the
mission. We also connected outside the
classroom with the help of other fellow
learners to put our learning into practice.
Instructor: Rev. Danny Cheung, Rev. Fanco
Chan, and Rodney Ho

The Golden Age: Jesus' Parables — Level 3
Focus: Through Jesus’ parables, we learn
about the secret of God's will and Jesus’
main feachings. Through learning the
background, meaning, and teachings. We
learned to apply the teachings in our daily
lives and ministry.

Instructors: Rev. David Lee, Rev. Danny
Cheung

Cdlling means the arrival of the Royal Edict —
Level 3

Focus: Using the study format of 3 to 5 in smalll
group discussions, we learned together
through audiovisual materials, to reflect how
fo combine discipleship training,
shepherding, and sharing the gospel, frying
to practice in our small group setting.
Instructor: Rev. Fanco Chan, Rev. Danny
Cheung, and Rev. David Lee

The Result of Development in 2021

o All the programs fit in the theme of the
year.

e Sunday School provided appropriate
lessons for believers at different stages of
growth in every term.

2021 Annual Report EE®RE



Bl =hH
== AA

=
]

T CANTONESE MINISTRY

P2l 522548 DISCIPLESHIP & EQUIPPING

BRRIBIK Ginny Zhou

FERNABEANFERS (U0 BERBBAK
M RELVEABRLARAZE - BABEAR
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EEEREEEE  BEEZHAEME) -

o RE-_(IMEMREMBELTHE -
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¢ Most of our brothers and sisters enjoyed
the small group design for attending
Sunday School, approving the small
group discussion format as an effective
chance for communication, sharing, and
application of truth learned to enable
more participation and stable
attendance. However, some of us were
aware of the limitatfions: the shortening of
the teaching time, the reluctance for
sharing in public, confusion caused by the
different opinions. Some application
questions need improvement. some
questions involved fixed answers while
some were too vague and lacked clarity.

e Our three pastors all participated steadily
in teaching.

e Sister Ginny Zhou, assisted by Sister Cher-
maine Tai, gradually fook over Brother
Rodney Ho's Ministry in Sunday school.

e The use of electronic mail for response
and feedback was not as good as
expected.

e Our congregation can make good use of
our church webpage to search for
Sunday School materials.

{E378 EVANGELISM

BIREBIEHZ Deaconess Winnie Ma

B %, ERERNREEZ EENEE
HH N ER - FEBRYTUKREEREZS
m e

B -F HBONUMBRAEE oW
N RER/ EM 6A
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In 2021, due to COVID-19, EV class was held
on Sunday afternoon at 2:.00 pm. We have
an average of 10 non-believers attending
each week. We had six new converts this
year, details as the following:

Visitation / other - 6 people
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Under the guidance of our Lord, we held
three series of HK workshops in 2021, two are
informational, the other one related to
emotions. These workshops targeted the
needs of Hong Kong people who are thinking
of immigrating to Canada. Through these
workshops, we have met around 80
individuals, including believers and non-
believers. We hope we can let others feel
the love of our God.

SN2 OUTREACH

FEIE S Deacon Alfred Tam

EBRE—FE K&
RUBSR - KRBDEE -
=27 BUF R LR
& B IREUM R EIRI R
£ - 22m - E—URIR
Hll - HEFZRIMNE
TrRAIZ R EM -
[ - EEE BRI
EIINBEEBRKRER
MisBMZESEIMNE
ETE-

SNEEXEE VRN - BEEWK - =

BIEFB T - FHIERKEE - Vidy Ko - Frank Yau
FEIKEE - Terence A MEEMINE -
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During the past year, we were affected by
the Covid pandemic
lockdown most of the
time. However, the
interruption on
GCGCNY Cantonese
Outreaching Team’s
activities was minimal.
Instead, we became
more active under the
good work of our
L4 committed Outreach
Team.

The GCGCNY
Cantonese Outreach
Team members are:
Rev. Danny Cheung, Connie Fung, Johnson
Wong, Calina & Simon Li, Frank Yau, Vidy Ko,
Terence and Alfred Tam.
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FEIE N Z Deacon Alfred Tam
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Under the guidance and encouragement of
Pastor Cheung, the outreaching team has
decided to continue the outreach work
online, using Zoom platform. Although many
similar Zoom meetings were conducted by
others locally and globally, the response and
participation of GCGCNY's Cantonese Zoom
Outreaching Topics sfill saw a constant
growth in 2021, which has confirmed our
direction and contfinual commitment. With
the positive response, we gradually
expanded our Zoom topics from the senior
groups to include all adult groups.

Also, we are grateful to the brothers and sis-
ters of our church and from the local Christian
community, who have helped and supported
us, and contributed to the success of our
Zoom seminars. In 2021, the GCGCNY
Cantonese outreaching activities included
Zoom Seminar Series:

e Covid Prevention and Vaccine Information
Session - March 2021

e Canada Tax Rules - April 2021

e Mental Health Care and Concerns under
Covid - May 2021

o Meeting Billy Pang, MPP - June 2021

e Hiking Trails in GTA and the Golden
Horseshoe - July 2021

o Traffic Tickets and the Rules - September
2021

e Estate Planning (l) - November 2021

e CISC's Series: Public Housing, Pensions,
Ontario Health Care and Welfare - January
& February 2022

During the Summer when restrictions
loosened temporarily, we had the
opportunity to organize group hiking trips to
the Colonel Danforth Park and the Lower Don
Trail in August and September respectively, so
that we can physically meet our outreaching
friends.

2021 Annual Report EE®RE




'

BEZEET CANTONESE MINISTRY

SN2 OUTREACH

FEIE N Z Deacon Alfred Tam
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In addition to the Zoom seminars and the
outdoor activity of local frails hiking, we have
continued to host Karaoke online. The male
Karaoke team was hosted by Johnson and
Simon every Friday evening, and Connie was
hosting the female team occasionally, as
ladies seemed to prefer personal sharing time
than singing.

Looking forward, as the social restrictions of
Covid gradually relieved in the Spring of 2022,
we will continue to conduct the Outreaching
activities in a hybrid model, i.e. Online and
in-person gef-togethers, in many more
interesting topics that can serve the need of
our community and the church outreaching
goal.

#T#E PRAYER

FBALFE#Z Deaconess Judy Hum

RS, RARRK

RO RUERZHKMIEYNE —S5BEF
B MAZREPBERNEE  TEEERMF
HEBOME - BEE2011F - ER{DERE
HEEEDN AR EEEERT —BEEHEE
M RRXEMBLERGS ,Jj]iﬁﬁ BLE
SNERIRIESI ZAOEETZEE - BR - 8
BAL - ERIPEMNBIENTE - E\*'ﬁEh
SR - SREEFEABEILIIGIE? "THREM
BeEs  BEATHSX - | (KO7N41)EEKR
BHOHF  AZFENSHEERE AL
BWIA - FIRERMEZEMESS -
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Watch and Pray

| am increasingly aware that we are
engaging in a spiritual battle. Our enemy s
the spiritual forces of evil in the heavenly
realms. Prayer is the key to our victory.
Looking back on 2011, the world was still
under the shadow of the epidemic. Our
Christian values were under attack from
society and its moral systems. We saw news
of violence and hatred everyday. These
circumstances led to many negativifies,
complaining, worrying, and even sinful
thoughts and actions. In this crooked and
perverted age, how can we as believers
stand firme “Watch and pray so that you will
not fall into temptation.” (Matthew 26:41). In
the end fime, many extraordinary things will
happen, and we will be tempted, doubted,
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FBAL 55 #5E Deaconess Judy Hum
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and even sinned. The Lord reminds us fo
watch and pray.

Thankfully, God has raised up a group of
faithful prayer warriors for us, who fervently
pray for our members, our church, our
pastors, our country, our non-believers, and
our missionaries, etc. every week. Through
prayer, God broadens our lives, not only
seeing our own needs, but also the needs of
our church, our community, and our world.
We come together as a faith community
every week to watch and pray for this
generation.

Due to the epidemic, in 2011, all evening
prayer meetings were being conducted
through the Internet via ZOOM. Due to the
improvement of the epidemic situation, the
Sunday morning prayer meetings had been
held simultaneously in-person and online
since October. The average aftendance of
the prayer meeting in 2021 was 22 people for
the morning prayer meetings and 23 people
for the evening prayer meetings. Our
WhatsApp prayer group, prayer hub of our
church, continued to distribute prayer
messages every Wednesday. Presently, there
are 97 people in this group.

May God confinue to ignite our hearts for
prayer, to pray not only for our own needs,
but also for the kingdom of God! May we
experience His mighty power in prayers and
may His grace overflows from our prayer lives!
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#83E22FEFZE Deaconess Liza Ki
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For the first seven months of 2021, due to
public health restrictions, our caring and
visitation was still being conducted by phone
and through WhatsApp. In mid-July, Mr. Lee,
an elderly man who had been staying at
home with ferminal cancer, went home to
the Lord. Rev. Lee conducted his funeral. By
August, the pandemic started to take a turn
for the better and restrictions gradually
eased. We could have in-person visits fo hos-
pitals and to homes again, and activities at
McNicoll Manor resumed once more. During
that time, since the capacity for social
gatherings had eased, Mrs. Wong, the leader
of Moses Fellowship who lives in McNicoll
Manor, was able to invite ten fellow residents,
both believers and seekers, to her room to
attend our church’s online service together.
The Holy Spirit led Mrs. Choi to accept Christ,
and we originally planned to have a
Christmas celebration, as well as Mrs. Choi's
baptism at our December meeting. However,
with the emergence of a new variant of the
virus, the pandemic worsened, and
restrictions were fightened again. Although
the Christmas celebration that we originally
planned for December 21 had to be
cancelled, Mrs. Choi's baptism was sfill held
at  McNicoll Manor with staff and four
Christian residents in attendance. Mrs. Choi
was very happy after her baptism, and
everyone praised God together. Later, Rev.
Lee and the two leaders of the Moses
Fellowship gave out Christmas gifts to every
senior in their rooms. The seniors were very
happy to receive the gift bags from GCS Day
Nursery and the church, and it made up for
the disappointment of not being able to
meet.
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Rev. Lee also performed the baptism for Mr.
Jiang at his home on December 18. Aside
from Mr. Jiang's family and a few brothers
and sisters from the church who attended in
person, other brothers and sisters from the
church also attended virtually, witnessing the
Lord’s grace together.

Mrs. Choi and Mr. Jiang both accepted Christ
during the pandemic, so we can see that
God is working af any time, guiding them
personally and softening their hearts. He also
gave us the opportunity to partner with Him.
When the pandemic was easing and we
were able to meet with them again, we
shared the gospel with them, and they were
moved by the Holy Spirit to receive salvation
and to be baptized into Jesus’ name. Yet
only affer a few months, the pandemic
worsened again, and we were prohibited
from visiting once more. It made us realize
that opportunities are rare and fleeting, and
that we really have to take hold of every
opportunity that God gives us to share the
gospel. | fruly believe that there is God's
good will in everything. May we not waste this
pandemic, but rather know God more and
realize His will in it. Then we will surely
experience Him more and lead more people
to Him through Christ.

“How priceless is your unfailing love, O
God! People take refuge in the shadow of
your wings. They feast on the abundance of
your house; you give them drink from your
river of delights. For with you is the fountain of
life; in your light we see light.” — Psalm 36:7-9
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Hebron — Rev. Danny Cheung

AHmETEERNE LRE  FEE102AE We met every Thursday morning; average
2 . ) aftendance of more than ten seniors. In 2021,
gl E2031 &7 John AAX Ping ; John and his wife Ping, as well as Mrs. Au
WEEREEZIE - Yeung were baptized after accepting the
faith.
BFMERE - SREEED

1. (AFIE&/\4E% : Alfred Tam; John Yoh ; Bethlehem - Rev. Danny Cheung
) ) ] ] ] . 1. There are five cells altogether under the
Liza Ki ; Calina Li ; Daisy Ho &/\i - & leadership of Alfred Tam, John Yoh, Liza Ki,
2021%+A - Cangi and Eddy HoshzE s Cdlina Li, and Daisy Ho. In July 2021,
R 9 ﬂyzax; Cangi and Eddy Ho decided to leave
HEHEESE  tMANNVEEESE & Grace Gospel Church while their group
F2021E+_BE - continued meeting unfil the end of

. December 2021.
2. SN RIEEME - W L - LEMAT 2. The cells met on Friday/Saturday evening
RS - AETFHIZLN - Alfred Tam or }Sundox; of;\im%oTn. A’r’re(rj\cigncs WO;
o o quite regular. Alfred Tam and Liza Ki use

filiza Ki REHBEASFRELENE Sunday sermons as their Bible study mate-
# - John Yoh ; Calina Li ; Daisy Ho Fii% rial. John Yoh, Calina Li, and Daisy Ho

e B A studied books of the Bible.

New Jerusalem - Rev. David Lee

HEPRREIS & — 24D Group leaders of New Jerusalem in 2021
e Mrs. Ng (2d and 4t Wednesday after-
noon)
2021 EF%EHBEX}EQ}%@QHF : e Judy Hum (2nd, 39 and 4'h Friday evening)
=zz s e Mrs. Lena Chan (1st and 3rd Friday even-
. eSS
SEASE ﬁ%ﬁﬂiﬁ(%z 4B—=F) ing
o BAIEWIK (352 3 4BAH) e Conrad & Polly Chan (15t & 31 Friday
» REZES (1 3E0M) Evemr?i)F licity Chan (1t & 3 Frid
e Enoc elici an (1s rd Frida
. BEERD - BREEH (B 3BAK) ovoring) Y
o [RfBIEZRDT - BORGENIK (551 - 3B AM) ¢ KK.& Aster Choong (1+' & 3 Friday even-
2 - £ 1 . 2 ing
o EESRET - EEERRI (R 1 3N e Adult Men’s World (4™ Friday evening) —
o HEBAXRZE (EUBRM) - BEERIEFHSET Mr. Au Yeung
o EMHPIYIEAAERBIR) ERIRH® e Adult Women's Discipleship Training Bible
o o Study group (every Tuesday morning) -
IhIR Mrs. Polly Chan
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Under the vast influence of the global
pandemic of 2020, resulting in massive chaos
and unrest, 2021 brought unprecedented
difficulties and challenges to the New
Jerusalem cell groups. Thanks to our faithful
Lord, whose abundant grace and guidance,
assisted by the loving dedication of our
leaders and spiritual staff, our cell groups
were kept stable; our cell members had
secure connections and concern for each
other. We also could achieve infimate
cooperation and care for the needy ones
during the pandemic. We all practiced the
lesson of walking and working with the Lord,
replying on Him alone so that we could
spend this difficult year peacefully.
Meanwhile, our cell groups could follow the
church theme for 2021: “Call to Rooting and
Maturing in Truth”. Our meetings focused on
the content of our worship sermons, to
enhance understanding and practice the
fruth involved, reminding each other in our
learning.

For 2021, we could not achieve in-person
meetings, but by faith we parficipated in
online meetings with attendants almost the
same as 2020. And with the potential of
having new additions from Hong Kong,
training new leaders became an important
item to upgrade believers in discipleship
training. Finally, we hope the pandemic can
be totally under control, becoming an item of
the past, then our church services and cell
group meetings could resume in-person.
However, we believe that this pandemic did
enable more contact with non-believers and
the caring of some physically-weak members
when they could participate at home. This
had actualized God's will, like Prophet Hab-
akkuk’s saying, “Though the fig free does
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not bud and there are no grapes on the
vines, though the olive crop fails and the
fields produce no food, though there are no
sheep in the pen and no cattle in the stalls,
yet | will rejoice in the Lord, | will be joyful in
God my Savior.” (Hab 3:17-18). May all glory
be ascribed to our God!

Family Zone - Rev. Fanco Chan

This year, we had a very steady
attendance. Though there were a few new
families joining cell, their attendance was not
steady as we couldn’'t meet in person to
strengthen our relationships. However, we
noticed that the relationship among former
cell members had improved. We believed
that it was because many of us attended
Sunday School together, fostering and
deepening our sharing. Also, with less
activities, cell leaders had more fime fto
nurture and support members, which also
brought cell members closer. Meanwhile, as
everyone faced similar challenges and
difficulties in this pandemic, with less social
events, everyone longed for the opportunity
to meet as a cell for mutual sharing and
support.

Praise God for the following cell leaders: Peki
& Jonathan Ng, Queenie & Kayson Ko,
Winnie & Tony Cheung, Synthia & Elden
Leung, Kinna & Leo Lou, Queenie & Mike
Lam, Katherine & Andy Lam. Thanks to Winnie
Ma for coaching new leaders.
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Philippi (Career Zone) - Rev. Fanco Chan
Though the pandemic was up and down, its
impact was mild to this group. Though many
were working from home, their workloads and
challenges remained heavy. As everyone
faced a similar situation, the bonding among
members had been improved through a
greater sympathy and mutual support. Also,
as we had been in three smaller sharing
groups for over a year, the sharing was deep-
er with a steadier attendance.

Thanks to Jolina Ma for coordinating the cell,
and together with Ginny Zhou, and Rev. Fan-
co to facilitate spiritual sharing in small
groups. Looking into 2022, as we reopen for
in person meetings, we look forward for more
breakthroughs and outreach opportunities.
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Cadalina Li

Our Bible reading group began on January 3,
2019. | remember when Rev. Chan
encouraged us to read the Bible, a sister
asked me if | would take up his suggestion
and learn from the Bible together, so | asked
other sisters for their thoughts. They agreed,
and that was how our Bible reading group
started. After discussion, we decided to read
the Bible five days a week, one passage a
day, and write our reflections on the
passage. We would meet once a month, and
if we had any questions, we would discuss
them together.

It was hard at the beginning. It was difficult fo
write a reflection, and since we only met
once a month, we'd already forget the
questions that we had. But even with these
bumps along the way, we persisted in
continuing to read. | believe our biggest
motivation was that every time we met, we
would share a meal together and start from a
happy mood. In our discussions, we'd
inevitably have some arguments and
disagreements, but thank the Lord that we alll
have accepting and listening hearts.

| remember that during the pandemic, we
met outdoors on the grass in a park. We each
brought our own folding chairs and food and
satf in a circle. It was quite a different feeling
being surrounded by nature. Even so, we
didn’t forget that our goal was to understand
God’'s word. In these three years, we had
some new members join us, and we've
changed our format and the way we do
things. Now we meet once every two weeks,
online, and if the conditions allow, we'll also
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meet for dinner in homes. Everyone has to
share about at least one chapter of Scripture
each time and pose a question for everyone
to think about, so that throughout this whole
process, everyone can participate and
generate interest. If we come across any
Bible passage that we don't understand,
we'll look info commentaries or ask Rev.
Cheung for help.

I'm very thankful that there are now seven
members in our Bible reading group.
Everyone supports this program, and our
attendance rate is 90%. We still have two
more years before we finish reading the
entire Bible. We give thanks to our heavenly
Father for giving us endurance. May the Lord
continue to be with us, that we may finish this
Bible reading plan. I'm saddened that one of
our members could no longer attend due to
personal reasons, but | hope that she can
return soon.

The following are thoughts from some of our
group members:

Jade: Originally, | didn’'t understand God'’s
word very well, but because of this Bible
reading group, | learned a lot, and found that
God is loving and compassionate.

Wendy: Our Bible reading group created a
warm and loving learning environment. It's a
learning group that has “gentle pressure.”
Through mutual trust and familiarity, group
members can openly talk fo one another
and share like friends, talking about what's in
our hearts, what we're going through, and
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us grow spiritually.

X ), Vidy and Wendy

Conni: In preparing for World Vision's 6K walk,
| kept hearing these words: "“If you want to
walk fast, walk alone; but if you want to walk
far, walk together.” Reading the Bible is also
like a long road. | remember the first time |
finished reading the whole Bible by myself, |
did it quite carelessly, because | could do it
quickly. Now when we're reading the Bible
together, | discovered that not just the details,
but even a lot of the content seemed unfa-
miliar to me. Thanks to our group leader who
didn't give up on her groupmates but kept
persisting. Today, everyone is very involved
and actfive in learning, sharing, and
encouraging one another. We've become
fellow fravellers, close sisters who want to
pursue and love God's word. Thanks to the
pastors for giving us this opportunity to share.
It's all God’s grace; may all glory be to our
Father in heaven.

Group members: Calina, Conni, Iris, Jade,
Mrs. Lau, Vidy, and Wendy
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Liza Ki, Caring and Visitation Ministry

God's Amazing Love

December 18, 2021, was the day of Mr.
Jiang's baptism. Although the weather was
cold and it was snowing, and despite health
restrictions that limited the number of people
who attended the baptism in brother Jiang's
home to within ten people (brothers and
sisters from church, Rev. Lee, and brother
Jiang's family), the joy of those who were
there warmed the whole house. Sisters who
attended also set up an online meeting so
that some church members could watch the
baptism and send their blessings to brother
Jiang, witnessing God's amazing deeds
together. Yes, brother Jiang's journey of faith
was indeed amazing. His daughter, Ling, and
a group of brothers and sisters had been
constantly sharing the gospel with him, but he
had always been resistant, even losing his
temper at them, ignoring everyone. But his
physical health, hearing, and memory started
to obviously deteriorate. Of course, his
daughter hoped that while her father could
still understand and hear clearly, he would
hear the gospel and be saved. When Rev.
Lee got the news, he led the caring and
visitation feam in prayer before our visit,
asking God for His mercy and grace. We
didn't expect that on the day we visited, not
only did Mr. Jiang smile and was friendly to
us, welcoming Rev. Lee and the team intfo his
home, but we also discovered that there was
a more effective way to communicate with
him: using writing. When he saw words being
written on paper, he understood us and
communicated with us. So we took a gospel
fract and falked with him. As he looked
attentively at the ftract, he read out its
contents. When asked whether he was willing
to believe in Jesus, he looked at the question
written there and said, “Yes!” If you were
there, you'd be excited too, wouldn't you?
reapers shouted for joy.

2021 Annual Report EE®RE



BETHEIE CANTONESE CONGREGATION TESTIMONIES

B ABRETERENER  EXEMAY
L BEIIZERESEMNL BEHHNE
e 2R RRMEANBR Y - ER2E
WEHE  TE2 MR TBEHENSEAR -
RIERBIBR Z BT EREOER N 718
BiET  #ETEMOABFER - B 7R
SR - BRERAULEIRY — R ERIT -

E1I2R21IHY B —UEESEPOLRE
BERRE - ERBZRHABLHRRA
IHIRERRE - BEODAREIR - IR FE
AWE - EEBOMNSHITE - EEIFH
& - FEZPOR— RPN ERE LR EF
1Y - BIRENEERFOANE AR
o ¢ - BE - TR L8 T EABZNE
P—IER  REEEPOLANEHEE - £F
DA RSB ERERNE—OR - #REAKE
WIRBHERER - BARDYWRILEIER - I
REANZRFE - EARRA FEREE - 8#X
SRAEZAKE 7B - AMEIEN - B0
B FIREEEANESE - ZBEFWH
BESE - MEREAR T DURRINERGS - B
N EEREIUETERABNERE - =65
B HBBEMBAE FENEAREM
FESEHINWRLRFEF  HPREZNEE
A - mE—EEEETH  =HHEBHEEEZ
AREEREEE  UBMEMEGERE—ETE
B REERNBE - Z8AX - BIERENT]
PURERIT - W EM A2 iR 510 - REEEW
EERATEGHAM 7 - WREERKE - #f
REBEHRBENEBRE  E2ENAHA
R - BEEMEENKEEZTZEPOIRFE

31 | Page

But while our hearts cried out, "Hallelujah!”
we had to keep going, and the next step was
to invite him to pray to accept Jesus as his
Saviour! When Mr. Jiang read the prayer out
loud and said “Amen,” we were all full of joy
and praised God for him! And so on the day
of his baptism, our church's brothers and
sisters, as well as his daughter, could not stop
recounting this amazing act of God, giving all
the glory to Him. God softened Mr. Jiang's
hard heart; not only did He change his
temper, He also changed his heart. Now Mr.
Jiang has a new heart, a new life; he is a son
of God, our brother in Christ. This is God's
grace, and also the shared fruit of our
brothers and sisters’ service. | fruly believe
that the gospel seed that had been planted
in Mr. Jiang's heart by the brothers and sisters,
God made it grow, and on the day that he
finally accepted Christ, both the sowers and
the reapers shouted for joy.

On December 21, Mrs. Choi, who lived in the
retirement residence, was baptized. Although
she had been led to Christ by sisters from the
caring feam before the pandemic, her faith
still wasn't very stable. The sisters didn’t give
up but contfinued to care and pray for her.
During the pandemic, all visitations and
fellowship meetings at the retirement
residence stopped, and the caring feam'’s
communication with the residents also
stopped. Praise God that He already
arranged for one of the leaders of the Moses
Fellowship, Mrs. Wong, who also lived in the
residence, to be our only source of
information there. Although the residents
were dll isolated in their own rooms, we could
still get some news about them and pray for
them. Without fellowship meetings for the
residents, and having hurt her leg because of
a fall, Mrs. Choi became more downcast,
and her faith weakened. The caring team
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continued to pray for her. As the pandemic
was slowly dying down, though visitors were
still not allowed, the residents could start to
meet with restrictions. So Mrs. Wong invited a
few of the Christian residents to her room on
Sundays to join in our church's online worship
service. Mrs. Choi was among those invited.
One communion Sunday, Mrs. Wong asked
Mrs. Choi if she wanted to believe in Jesus
and take communion with the other
believers. Mrs. Choi said yes. Not long
afterwards, the caring team could go visit
again, and Rev. Lee confimed her faith.
After her genuine acceptance, Mrs. Choi
became more cheerful, and she decided to
get baptized. On the day of the baptism,
although the pandemic had taken a turn for
the worse again and the number of
attendees were limited, the simple yet solemn
baptism went smoothly in the retirement
residence, with Mrs. Choi and everyone else
experiencing God’s amazing grace together.
Our Lord had removed the obstacles and
worked in all things, so that when we couldn’t
have in-person meetings, He wused our
church’s online worship service. He also used
Mrs. Wong, who is in her 80s, to invite Mrs.
Choi, so that she could be saved at the age
of 94. What a wonderful thing! What amazing
grace! We didn't actually do anything; if it
were not for the leading of the Holy Spirit,
how could someone at such an old age
believe in Jesus?2 But we also did do
something. It was “us” — the body of Christ —
who responded to God's call together and
worked together to fulfill God’s mission. We
did it under the lead of our Lord God Jesus
Christ — the "head” of the church - so that
believers and nonbelievers could withess
God's amazing love together.

Psalm 31:19: “How abundant are the good
things that You have stored up for those who
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fear You, that You bestow in the sight of all,
on those who take refuge in You." God's
great love calls us to receive His amazing
grace. May we all be faithful fo what He has
entrusted to us, so that more people can
“experience His amazing love, walk with Him,
and glorify His namel!

Tracy Fan

Thanks to our heavenly Father, the church,
and the pastors for giving me this opportunity
to share what | learned from serving in the
Brazil short term mission.

In early 2021, with the help and arrangement
of our heavenly Father, | got a new job. With
this new job, my workload and stress were less
than before. | felt the Father prompting me to
think about how | could use the extra time
and energy to give back to Him, and through
this, | hoped to understand His will in my
ministry. So | started to pray for direction in my
ministry. About two months later, during one
prayer meeting, | was put info the same
group as Rev. Lee. He invited me to help out
as a Mandarin teacher for the Brazil short
term mission. The Mandarin feacher would be
responsible for teaching Mandarin online, in
hopes that through this, we could get to
know the locals and share the gospel with
them. My usual aftitude towards serving was
that | don't refuse anyone, because | assume
that people ask me because they couldn't
find anyone else to help. | also thought that if
| served more, God would be pleased. But
this time, the Father reminded me that if | just
kept taking on more ministries but neglected
to understand His will, He would not be
pleased. So then | asked Rev. Lee to give me
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a few days to pray about it, hoping | would
know whether this ministry was what God
intended for me. The Father also reminded
me that | needed to pray about this ministry
with my husband. Before, | would just let my
husband know about my decision after the
fact, but this fime, God wanted me to learn
to respect his opinion. And so, my husband
and | prayed together, and we invited our
cell members to pray for this as well. In
prayer, | readlly felt God’s affirmation, and so |
agreed to participate in this ministry.

Throughout the preparation process and
during the first lesson, my focus was on
teaching Mandarin, but the Father used
another sister who was serving with me fo
remind me that | placed the focus on the
wrong thing. Language teaching was
secondary; what was most important was
getting to know the locals and building
relationships with them, and from there
infroduce Jesus Christ to them. | saw the
Lord’'s amazing works; as long as I'm willing to
be humble and view others as better than
myself, He will use the brothers and sisters
around me to help me learn more and grow
spiritually. | also experienced that as long as
I'm willing to humbly obey and wait upon
God'’s leading, and if what | do is to glorify
God and not glorify myself, the Father will use
all kinds of things to fulfill everything smoothly.
| saw that the young people in Brazil were
willing to come online every week and
participate in this class and talk with us. At
first, they didn't want to speak or turn on their
cameras, but now they were wiling to share
about their own lives with us. All these helped
me see how great the Father's power is. Even
though the students call me feacher, like |
had taught them a lot, in this ministry, | feel
like I'm the one who benefited the most. |
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learned to listen to God's voice, and to
understand and obey His will. | also fruly saw
God’s faithfulness and unlimited power. He
can make all things work together, just like it
says in Romans 8:28: "And we know that in all
things God works for the good of those who
love him, who have been called according
to his purpose.”

May dall praise and glory go to my good
Teacher in heaven.
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ZE/ Y ET Rev. Ted Tham

(Job 1:21b) The Lord gave and the Lord has
taken away; may the name of the Lord be
praised.

These ancient words, spoken by Job as he
experienced fremendous fragedy to his
livelihood, family and his own physical health,
still ring tfrue today. Our God has been good
to us in many ways in the past, and we've
also experienced some loss throughout the
pandemic. It has been over two years now,
with a slow return to normalcy and no
guarantees that it will ever be the same as
before. Life during the pandemic has been
very much like a roller coaster — a lot of ups
and downs; but like a roller coaster, the key is
to hang on and enjoy the ride! Letf us not
become weary in doing good, for at the
proper time we will reap a harvest if we do
not give up (Galatians 6:9). With Job, we also
say, “... may the name of the Lord be
praised.” Following is just a small sample of
the many reasons we can give praise to God
for 2021!

Our theme for 2021 was “Call to Rooting and
Maturing in Truth,” with a focus on Discipleship
& Equipping. In our Sunday sermons we went
through a series entitled “The Disciples’
Manual” based on Luke 9:51-19:44. Much of
the year our sermons were recorded and
shown online only, but we were given the
opportunity to return to in-person worship on
Oct. 10, 2021 for a brief period until Jan. 9,
2022, and then we resumed in-person worship
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% : Donna DongB T 1ER=EFEHEE ; &
MWESEEEZMMEKET ; Michael
Messengerst4 - HMRHLBEERBE D RIA
Fred Tham #EMA] Jay Calder#ZEi -

R HBEEE:

R LRBTRMEANEBEBRETRE - i
#2021 £5 H 1 HRGESH—FHNRBESR
(BRANTNE) - KE - HMEBTHEE
Mary WeiX TR TIFREEERE10/)\R
Z5/\F - EfF - Wilson  KwongftEmM A
MNRIFERXTNE - 88 ITIES/ N\ -

EF - BAB=ESIBUS 75 mE R
HEERYE - —HB2I”AH - Katherine Ma #
Priscilla Lee ZBNFMET FAILFHEE - BS
HAR - Katherine Ma A Elise Chiu &EBhF1M
MEYIRIT - Wilson Kwong 1 Matthew
Davoodi & BN Fr0 S B BXANE S EPAE AR
ZWEREM LRPEFE -
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on Feb. 13, 2022. | want fo thank Pastor
Michelle Kim, Rev. Fanco Chan, Pastor Eva
Poon, Mr. Santos Chan, Rev. David Lee, Rev.
Danny Cheung and Rev. C.H. Siu for their
wonderful ministry fo us by sharing and

expounding God's Word.  We also thank
God for the guest speakers last year,
including: Dr. Donna Dong our Missions
Conference speaker; Rev. John Chan our
Summer Conference speaker; Mr. Michael
Messenger our Social Justice Sunday speaker,
Rev. Fred Tham; and Rev. Jay Calder our
Compassion Sunday speaker.

Staff & Student Interns:

We thank God for our Pastoral Intern, Mr.
Santos Chan, who began a one-year part-
time internship (17 hrs/wk.) beginning May 1,
2021. In the Fall, Mrs. Mary Wei, our English
Administrative Assistant, reduced her hours
from 10 hrs/wk. to 5 hrs/wk.; while at the same
fime Mr. Wison Kwong became our
Production Team technician for 5 hrs/wk.

Last year we were blessed with two ferms of
government supported student interns. From
Jan. to Feb. Katherine Ma and Priscilla Lee
helped us with our website development.
During the summer Katherine Ma and Elise
Chiu helped us with the Grace Community
Food Share; and Wilson Kwong and Matthew
Davoodi helped with our Production Team
and Media Ministry as we prepared for hybrid
worship in the Fall.

Prayer Ministry:

| often say that “prayer meetings are the
most important meetings at GCGCNY,” and |
believe it. 2021 proved to be a year of many
prayer groups continuing and even more
groups forming. Currently we have two
weekly congregational prayer meetings on
Wed. evenings and Sun. mornings, Mon.
morning and Thurs. evening men’s prayer
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groups, Fri. and Sat. women’'s prayer, bi-
weekly Fri. night teen’s prayer, Thurs. prayer
for caregivers, and numerous regular prayer
groups in fellowship and cell groups.

Virtual “Meet & Greet” : Jan.17, Mar. 14, May
16, Jun. 13, Aug. 8, Sep. 12

Membership Meetings

March 7: Re-election of Deacons Hoytson
Wong, Howard Chin, Carol Tse, Shermeen
Law, Mike Luu, Edwina Luu for another 2 yr.
term (May 1, 2021 to Apr. 30, 2023) and
election of new Deacon Xiao Wang for a 2 yr.
ferm.

May 20: Confirmation of Rev. Ren, Rev. Tham,
and Pastor Kim for another 3-year term.
Election of Board of Directors (Hoytson Wong,
TK Wong, Conrad Chan, Simon Tse, Edwin Ge,
Michael Luu, Leo Lou, and Richard Liang).

Nov. 28: Approval of 2022 Budget and a few
constitutional changes.
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Key Congregational Events in 2021:

Missions Conf. - Jan. 29-31 Dr. Donna Dong "Witness: One Heart & One Mind" Phil. 2:1,2,5
Poverty Sunday - March 14 Pastor Michelle “Essentials in Disciple's Prayer” Luke 11:1-4
Good Friday — Apr. 2 Virtual over zoom by zone (teens, adult, family)

Easter Sunday — Apr. 4 Rev. Ted “Immunized by Irrevocable Joy” John 16:16-22

Proverbs 22:6
Jer. 38:1-13; 39:15-18

other's Day — May 9
Mission Sunday - May 16

Pastor Michelle “Godly Mother”
Rev. Ted “Ebed-Melek Heard”

31st Anniversary - May 30 Rev. Fanco Chan "“Equipping Dynamically™ Acts 8:26-4
Father's Day - Jun 20 Rev. Ted “A Gift to Fathers: Healthy Families” Ephesians 6:1-4
Summer Retreat - Jul 9-11 Rev. John Chan “Be a Faithful Servant” Mt 24:45-51
Mission Sunday - Aug 29 Rev. David Lee “Mission in the Post-Epidemic Era” Zephaniah 3:6
Social Justice Sun - Sep 19 Mr. Michael Messenger “Following Jesus to the Margins  John 4:4-9

Pastor Michelle “God Who Restores” Ps 126
Rev. Ted "2 Treasures, 2 Visions, 2 Masters” Matthew 6:19-24

Thanksgiving - Oct 10
Stewardship Sun - Oct 24

Mission Sunday - Oct 31
Compassion Sun - Dec 5
Christmas Sun - Dec 19
Baptism Sun - Dec 26

EEFE-1H29HE31H

®EFxH-3A14H
kS8 A -4 208
BESHEH-484H
BHE-5sA9A
EZEFxHA-5A 16 H
31 BFEEE-5H30A
RFE -6 A 20H
ES®-7H9HZE 11 H
EZEFXH-8H29H
#BIEB-9A 19H
BEf-10H810A
EREH-10H 24 H
EZ#EFXH-10831H
#B*H-1285H
EB3IET-12 A 19 H
=EE*H-12826H

Pastor Michelle *Not Ashamed of the Gospel”
Rev. Jay Calder “Honouring the Ones God Honours”
Mr. Santos Chan "“Follow Jesus the Morning Star”

Romans 1:16-17
Mt 18:1-5; 25:31-40
Matthew 1:18-2:12

Pastor Michelle "Out of darkness info His Wonderful Light” 1 Pe. 2:9-12

2021 FNEEEEEE :

Donna Dong % : AOEEEES
TEE  MERENER
PTERLRE (BLF. A, RE)
EWED  BRENERERE

ZTEE  BWERNEH

EARED  UEKBEET

BREIEARED : £ EAEfE

AT . BB —RERIRE
BRARERAED : i — @B OHEA
TEEWAE  BEERANEHR
Michael Messenger &4 : IR EEFiB#&
TEE  9ERER

AT 2 HFEE. 2HFRR, 2 LKA

ZEE  FUBZT AR

Jay Calder 45 A : M@ £ 7 38K
BRIZITSEAE © IRPER 2 EPER
TEE  BMEAREEATY XA
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BESTEEE 2:1,2,5
BENEE 11:1-4

HEEFE 16:16-22

&S 226

HRFIK & 38:1-13, 39:15-18
E4E1T1H 8:26-40
DABBPRE 6:1-4

BAEH 24:45-51
AEHESE 36

HNBRE 449

¥ 126

BAEE 6:19-24

BEE 11617

BAEE 18:1-5;25:31-40
BARE 1:18-2:12
WSAE 2:9-12
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2 FF Worship

F B #ZE Deacon Xiao Wang

BB OWEFEME Shermeen Lawit
2021 FHEE MR - BT HXiao Wang ##
=
MEEFNBRETE2021FYEET
YouTube W - AW EWFHE M
(James, Max, Ronson, Xiao) IR IS
WEE  BBWE THEEEXHR -
20215t - #EWilson KwongMEBISEHF
NAEFALERE EEAESTNERETH
= UARZHNEE - RZ#HAndy Luc #
Vanessa Tsui B335

£2021%FE = - Wilson Kwong B AOEH
HA CSHFEAEREFNRE -
HIZRT10RBREBRER - A=K=%F
AB : BEHFHNEANy LeungHl Miga
Kim, Santos Chan#l Terence Ma, Ron-
son Ng#l Iris Ng ; BB E &M1&/
EWilson Kwong, Simeon Wong, Clem-
ent Chan, Kevin Lau, Justin Chiu, Andy
Luc, Jennifer Yu, Ryan Chan, Kevin Ho ;
BE518FMWABARoland  Chan, Haidan
Chan, Edwina Luu, Mike Luu, Samuel

Chan, Karl Hui, Luke Zhang, Jadon Ng.
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e OQur faithful deaconess for worship
ministry, Shermeen Law, continued on leave
in 2021. Xiao Wang took over the worship
ministry from Shermeen Law in 2021.

e Worship service confinued as online
recording at the beginning of 2021 with
YouTube playlists of worship songs provided
by worship leaders (James, Max, Ronson, and
Xiao) and recorded sermons by the pastoral
team.

e |In mid-2021, worship services were moved
to live-streaming with the help of Wilson
Kwong. This provided a way for more
interactions and the ability for congregation
members to worship at the same time from
one place online, with help from Andy Luc
and Vanessa Tsui

e Over the summer of 2021, Wilson Kwong
provided setup and configuration for
in-person live-streaming of services in
anficipation of returning to in-person worship
services.

e In September/October, service moved
back to in person. The worship ministry was
able fo provide 3 new feams to serve in
person consisting of Andy Leung and Miga
Kim, Santos Chan and Terence Ma, Ronson
Ng and Iris Ng for worship; and Wilson Kwong,
Simeon Wong, Clement Chan, Kevin Lau,
Justin Chiu, Andy Luc, Jennifer Yu, Ryan
Chan, Kevin Ho for Sound and Tech; and
Roland Chan, Haidan Chan, Edwina Luu,
Mike Luu, Samuel Chan, Karl Hui, Luke Zhang,
Jadon Ng for ushering.

This also provided significant growth in mem-
bers to both the sound/tech ministry in capa-
bilities and members.
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52FF Worship

F B #1Z Deacon Xiao Wang

BRI EERBMSES TNSEHF ARNBENT

E) S

o ERREMEESENGMD - DUKAKRKE
REIBENABIBZMEZNARAEEAE
s

e Pray for confinuous direction for the
worship ministry and the future of the ministry
as we move back to more in-person capacity
and expand the teams and members

=5 Media

F B #ZE Deacon Xiao Wang

o T2021FEZ - Matt DavoodifZiEE%R
STEEERYE - BXiao Wang EEIH
Wilson Kwong#l Beatrice Wool## 8 -

e —EZA "ME, WEMBEEEEXH
ga - HALGBEZEE R =tFIERE
R B EE R AR R AR -

o BEEMatt WEBHTHE TS Lok
7 RIEBEABTE2022FMARIEE &
1EH B R 17BN TAF -

o KETHEEBHHAMMANIXENERE
5ESET -
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e Over the summer of 2021, Matt Davoodi
was hired as a summer intern to help establish
and work on the Media Ministry with the
oversight of Xiao Wang and the help of
Wilson Kwong and Beatrice Woo.

e A pilot project called "Stories" was
created over the summer which allowed
congregation members to share their stories
with God in inferview-style short videos.

e The media ministry is currently on hiatus
after the conclusion of Matt's internship and
seeking to recruit members to both lead and
help in various projects in 2022.

Pray for members of the congregation with
passion and skills to step up in helping
establish  this  ministry in  a long-term
sustainable way.
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&/DEE Youth

H 5=BA#EE Deaconess Carol Tse

EMBLONEVFESTIHSE  Shermeen
Law E2021F4EE MR - Carol Tse #&/&
BETEILEF-
GenesisE 2R & EE2020F3 8RB EL
MERE - H2021 598 B FHRE -
RBITIEF—RERBES - RMIREME
TrZEEBRFPINBERZEEE - BFEER
SMNERFE - ZYouth Unlimited #1819 Light
Patrol ETEMNRE TN - BELE
BHIRES - - LR REENNEE
R UREBRRIZIFAURER
SEEHALBESHE TS - Genesis
RINBERBE EARERHIBEHAEMN
A - Bt T SN 7ERNEL -
Genesis fEEEENERTT 7 —I5 REWIE
EE) - M ERIRE—F—ENERE
B REEZEAB=E#AETom More
BEEARERNE - H#E  EBRBI17
WMAARARERS  LERESASAE
BYIR{TEE85TT -

JEE 2B ess Leung, Simeon Wong,
Bowen Oung 1 Wilson Kwong MA %A
AR -

M

cal
~
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Our faithful deaconess for youth,
Shermeen Law, confinued on leave in
2021. Carol Tse has continued to oversee
the youth ministry.

Genesis fellowship has moved online since
March 2020 due to COVID-19. At the start
of the new school year in Sept 2021,
Genesis met in person for the first time for
our Welcome Back/Start of the year
Kick-Off. We held several in person
outdoor meetings/activities including an
outdoor worship night, Fit-A-Thon
fundraiser for Youth Unlimited's Light
Patrol, and community garbage clean-up
night. It was a blessing to meet some
youth for the first time and fo see
everyone again in person.

Despite the challenges of online
meetings, Genesis continues to grow with
new members joining in many grades. We
also welcomed 5 new Grade 7 students.

Genesis held a large evangelism event for
Christmas. We held our annual Christmas
Market outside with a Christmas message
indoors with guest speaker, Pastor Tom
More. Praise the Lord for 17 new friends
that night that heard the gospel message.
$85 dollars raised through the market for
our church Food Bank.

Tremendous thank you's to our new Adult
Leadership team: Jess Leung, Simeon
Wong, Bowen Oung, and Wilson Kwong.

We also have had amazing student
leaders both that have graduated in June
2021 and that have joined in Sept 2021.
Our current student leaders are: Roxanne
Cheung, Sandra Huang, Daniel Chen,
and Serene Chiu who meet faithfully
every other Saturday morning for fraining
and planning and serve weekly every
Friday in Genesis.
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5 /M E Youth

B ZEBA#EE Deaconess Carol Tse

F021TFHMEERENBLERMORE
% S—ERITEIRAMA - RSB EFEH
A : Roxanne Cheung, Sandra Huang,
Daniel Chen # Serene Chiu - #{f7&/0
mEmMERNE FHBEEIINIRRED
THESEEMHhMERZPES -
BLEMMNEEHEER SREZH
¥TEE - Genesis Podcast BIERERIE
B - Genesis Instagram, FIa0FEFX -

Ema VERBUBERKENSE - LHEZ
SABLEFLETHALBRENEVERS - B
PEXHRE - H2022F A EREERN - K
MEa—MERE% L HBERE

Additional ministries that Genesis that the
student leaders have been faithful in
serving in include biweekly prayer
meetings, the recording and broadcast of
the Genesis Podcast, Genesis Instagram,
and worship feam.

Pray for the drawing near of all the youth,
especially for the youth who stopped
coming online. As we look to 2022 and
meeting in person again, may we grow in
unity and fellowship under God'’s grace.

FHZ)I & 2= {4 DISCIPLESHIP & EQUIPPING

H =B EE Deaconess Carol Tse

RAEHES : REBR% - B2020F34
A LETT - BRETRFEEEl R0
EBEHN - H HEERARRNER
) RALERIRE
BVEETHEHFTERE1I2ERETR
—WHEEER LET - RPWFELROM
ESENSEELHENRE - RZH

Adult Sunday School: has continued
online since March 2020 due to COVID-19.
Rev. Ted, Pastor Michelle have taught
faithfully every Saturday and Sunday
morning studying various Bible characters
and books.

Youth Sunday School contfinued online as
1 class (Grades 7 through 12). Our faithful
volunteers teach weekly and learned to
adapt to the online setting. Thank you to
Samuel Chan, Jonathan Yeh, Cecilia,
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P35z 254% DISCIPLESHIP & EQUIPPING

H 5=BA#EE Deaconess Carol Tse

[...] Samuel Chan, Jonathan Yeh, Cecilia
Ki, Santos Chan, #Vanessa Tsui &7
EABYIPE - danhiA& - A T aFE-AEER
B FRE - #HREBEE—FEENEAE
EHARZK20ABXZ10A - BE T RWERE

HBE2021F F2022F N EBRFIRE

- —EFEIREE NVEEBRRBNE
ZHIRFTINO 5 B E 2 AR S TEER P
AllFNLAMEA - BRERMEREBHABIIA
M KT RIEI NV ERET A BTV -
2022F FMETEIBIEBE B KBS EZ A
ZEPSIIFEM A [T -
BMNENERFEBZEM - BREKE

HE -

[...] Santos Chan, and Vanessa Tsui for
teaching courses on Basic Apologetics,
Bible Studies for Life, and Worship -
Sacred Pathways. Though the number of
students have decreased from ~20
stfudents to 10 over the past year, the
ones who remain have readlly enjoyed the
COourses.

Discipleship and Equipping has been the
church’s theme for 2021 and 2022. A D&E
English team has been meeting monthly
fo pray and review how we can
encourage deeper discipleship
specifically in growing more mature
believers and leadership development.
We remain thankful to God for the many
small discipleship groups and mentorship
groups that have formed over COVID. A
plan to more actively encourage and
connect people for discipleship and
mentorship will begin in 2022.

We have great need for Sunday School
teachers. Please be praying for God's
providence.

{E38 EVANGELISM

#H 5=BA#EE Deaconess Carol Tse

SRS TH2021FNEFRAIETRE
8 - BB E/ )\ SR i B 2R (RS
E-

F2021F & BRI AR M AR H
fintfh & &g -
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No formal softball season was run last
summer 2021, however, several groups
played in various leagues to continue
personal outreach to friends.

No Alpha course or other organized
evangelism events took place in 2021 due
to COVID.
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{85378 EVANGELISM

H 5=BA#EE Deaconess Carol Tse

o ERIF/NEESRER CNBRETIHNEL
fE- W B/ NEE—EZ8HUK LR
hOEETT 72021 ER =R A IBEE -

o 2021FRBIFREHAL - B RS
TTHF - REFEHESHSWE - FEAKME
DHTfs - H202FREEEZEERED -
HMESHERERE - 2IKECEMEMS
R - TIEEEZHEMKEINTIA -

L>\\\
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Individual cells were confinually
encouraged to outreach and
evangelize through the year online or
as able in person. E.g. Thursday night
Young Adults Cell organized a
Christmas 2021  Sandwich  run
downtown

. No new believers in 2021 but much

work is being done to prepare the soill
Pray with us for the harvest as many
friends are seeking and looking for the
fruth. As 2022 leads to more in-person
gatherings, pray for workers to sow
and reap as we prepare for Alpha,
softball, and other outreach ministries
in 2022.

Z EE FAMILY

{o] i B # = Deacon Kevin Ho

FZERE—EBEERERL - EFHEMERXR
5 BZIHRE - PEAMEFA -

2021 FHEBR APV EMRETT M E
W—F - HERMERLEE 7 - RER
BIRER - RBESREFNR - MFTEREEM
B2 LfF  DIKEGRENEN —wifH -

MBI NEBEESZRSERESR  B15HA
BHNEE  SFE—LERINEN—LEERFE

r1—

RMEEEREREEER ENRBSLT -
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The Family Zone is a multi-generational zone
spanning recently married couples, families
with children, older adults, and seniors.

2021 continued to be a challenging year for
our families and members as we adapted to
the lockdowns, children’s online schooling,
loosening of restrictions in the summer, return
to school and work in the fall, and then
another round of lockdowns leading into
Christmas.

We confinue to see our cell groups grow
closer together and learned to be creative
to meet ftogether including some outdoor
meetups and some in person gatherings as
the restrictions allowed.
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Z EE FAMILY

It B # = Deacon Kevin Ho
EADTSBIESES

We continued to have some Zoom Family
Zone around the seasonal dates.

o RIMERFEEIENAMINE - R 2022 F

s — = /55— == N
F_FER/FE=_FEEBHRLA Please pray for:

Q= e Planting of new cell for newly married
. EERERNEREE -
SRR EMR/ENES couples that will start up Q2/Q3 2022
o SEEANPE/)\AH RSB AN AP/ )\ 40 25 e Multiplication of the young family cell
e Leaders to lead the cells and to plant
o FREMBWIHHIBERMERE - new cells

e Families as they continue fo fransition from
lockdowns to the new normal.

e/ -
_— Cell groups:

FEBZ /A - Kevin Ho ~ Edwina Luu e Young Family Cell - Kevin Ho, Edwina Luu
) ¢ Men's Cell - Kevin Ho
SF# - Kevin Ho _
¢ Women's Cell - Edwina Luu
X ¥ - Edwina Luu e Barnabas Cell | - Gloria Yu
E=E/N48 1 - Gloria Yu e Barnabas Cell Il - Rose Xie, Yves Hum

¢ Mature Adult Cell - Hoytson & Jenny

= 48 0 _ PN
EZE/04H 2 - Rose Xie » Yves Hum Wong, Lilan Wong (New)

B A - Hoytson & Jenny Wong, Lilian Wong
(#7)
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Z EE FAMILY

{o] tt BE 2 Deacon Kevin Ho

FEFKRE/VAH - Kevin Ho ~ Edwina Luu# =

EREN—FE  FERE/NE
SHHAE (Jubilee
Mok ) - EFHE - HMEEEZFM—IE
SMBHE LWREREF - BEUNFHENE
MK - HARGERREEEENEEES
ERTIHERE ZFMTUMUEREETRE
DR -

B MR
Chang ' Zechariah

HERFEXEERNZ—ERE LA —ENE
B AHMREES FMLXFI/NEBEZR
& - StERMBEN T E MG EHMKRERES
EHERBIAMA B Z P B MR 5E5E -

B ¥4 - Kevin Ho #1538

SFNHEEESERNE—REZ2MNEE - £17
AEmAMTE - 2021 F - EKMZMA T Ken
ShigematsuZfEfY "Survival Guide for the
Souls « BIRFAHMERFHEEHER LIERE
NDEHNERE - BAME - HMFE®B FHAHLarry
Osbornef#%# TA  Contrarian’s  Guide to
Knowing God s - I—E@HBEBEMNH VKR

BHRUVRFAGHAMELEEBANER - SF

P
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Young Family Cell -
Deacon Kevin Ho, Deaconess Edwina Luu

In this past year, the Young Family Cell
celebrated 2 new babies (Jubilee Chang,
Zechariah Mok). For the first half of the year
we confinued the families meeting online for
Sunday morning worship with our children.
With the opening of the church in the fall, we
started fo have families join the Sunday
worship in person in the back room where the
kids can play in family groupings.

As it is difficult for the young families to meet
with together with our children with us, we
have focused on the men’'s and women's
cell meeting times. This also allows us
flexibility to include other people who don't fit
in with the other family zone cells to join in
fellowship and studying God's word together.

Men’s Cell - Deacon Kevin Ho

The men’s cell continues to meet on the first
Thursdays of each month for a fime of
discussion and prayer. In 2021, we
completed “Survival Guide for the Soul” by
Ken Shigematsu to help boost our spiritual
walk in this time as we continue to work from
home and deal with the stresses of the
pandemic. In the fall, we started “A
Confrarian’s Guide to Knowing God"” by Larry
Osborne for a practical and engaging way of
thinking about what it means to build a great
relationship with God for us normal guys. We
had two new guys start attending this year
with a typical attendance of 8-10 guys at
various stages of life.

On all other Thursdays, we meet together
virtually for a short fime of prayer and sharing.
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{o] tt BE 2 Deacon Kevin Ho

FPIFTIE T AR - —fi%E 8-10 BERAZE
BIEMEERAAS -

EEMOEHRN - RMSER L—EFEENAE
MADZF - BEAREHER T Z PIRRAE S IR
B -HMAEC (2% BExXE - TfF) - &M
RA ~ FAFIRORRA ~ BRLESSRARIA - FFIRIH
ZRIERA R PRI E X A4S -

AR ANEZI Y 4 R84 L Impactus BFE
& BPAIWFENBENER -

L F# - Edwina Luui 3

BEERBHE  BIOIAEERMANEERRE
IR ABERER - =F - HAWEFII 6-7 BAk
BERFF1H9-10 - 2021 FHEHEERE
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This has allowed us to connect with each
other even though things are busy for the
guys. We pray for ourselves (health, taking
care of family, work), our families, our friends,
those who are seeking God, for our church
and pastors and for our nation.

A number of guys also joined the virtual
Impactus Men's conference in April for a time
of worship and teaching.

Women'’s Cell - Deaconess Edwina Luu

God confinues to work mighfily in our lives
despite the pandemic. Last year we grew
from an average of 6-7 members to 9-10

members on average. Our consistency
remains the same this year in  2021!
Sometimes we had an average of 12
members. The focus shifted from last year to
this year into building deeper and meaningful
relationships by fellowshipping more about
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Z EE FAMILY

{o] tt BE 2 Deacon Kevin Ho

E ! BRRMFEE 12 2ME - HAERE
ENREFNMBELESHNER  BRES
FRBBFZMREURILEERANBEER
AR % - TR ABUERIEMR - R FMIA
M/ VERBBNRERES - RILZERBERE
BAAMERE - RMFREEAR/ N ERBRESRE
RERRRED

BEF_EEHRH - HMHATEERZFEBH
AR SR HMNEEE - SRESBNERE
MAZEE R RESEERSRKBNEE - H
BERLTRZEREEES  FTENIPERE
(PPS) - BEAMEMEZIHA - KM
B0 BAFEDE R HORE) - RBIDREWFFE
D RAMMERBED - RBUTERE
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deepening in each other’s lives instead of
following a specific book for Bible study. Since
our cell time is still online, the connection with
each other is not the same and we wanted
to focus on living life in a meaningful way
during cell.

Every 2nd Friday, we fellowship by doing a
Bible study which relates to what we are
going through. This encompasses a lot of
prayer and discernment plus reflection
through God to determine what topic to
study and share each time. Our 4th Fridays
consists of Praise, Prayer and Sharing time
(PPS). Both Fridays of the month, we spend
time with an infentional welcome or
icebreaker, then dwell into worship, dive into
the Bible study or prayer, and always closing
in prayer. The ladies have been encouraged
to take on leading welcome and worship too.

It has not been easy for many individuals in
our cell due fto circumstances of the
pandemic which affected them, but we
continue to lift each other up in prayer. Our
women's cell has also been praying about
our cell which is growing. We pray that in
2022, a new cell group will be formed, or we
will multiply. Our group consists of ladies in
various life stages such as singleness, newly
wedded, young moms with one child or
multiple children. We were also blessed to
have two new members who are newly
wedded who joined us near the end of the
year! We continue to pray that God will work
mightily and multiply our group or form a new
group due to our large cell. Next year, in
2022, we planned to have parenting
workshops once a month for our moms (and
their spouses) and/or for the newly wedded
couples. This will be from January to June
2022. Looking for another blessed year of
God'’s grace, love, and goodness.
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Barnabas Cell | - Gloria Yu

With thanksgiving and praise to the Lord our
fellowship has been prosperous and growing
closer and deeper with the Lord and with one
another. We had a new member join us and
two members were baptized. We have
withessed God's love and faithfulness at work
first hand in the midst of fear, unknown and
uncertainty.  We have been focusing on
learning God's Word through reading various
Christian books and improving our prayer life.
It has been a blessing and encouragement
to see every one of us grow our faith in Christ.
We will continue to strive for what 1
Thessalonians  5:11  states, "Therefore
encourage one another and build each
other up, just as in fact you are doing."
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Barnabas Cell Il -
i Rose Xie, Yves Hum

By God's grace, Barnabas
Cell Il keeps meeting online
through Zoom in 2021.
Although we missed the
closeness of our “in-person”
meetings prior to the
pandemic, we thank God so
much for maintaining us as a
group with sincere care and
encouragement to one
another even through the
virtual meetings all the fime.

Fellowship meetings were kept twice a month
focusing on studying “Glory Days” written by
Max Lucado, except that in the summertime
(June - August) we met once a month
focusing on exchanging our care and
encouragement to one another in His love.
We welcomed a new member infroduced by
Rev. Ted and joined in late November 2021.
The whole group felt encouraged and thank
God for sending us more opportunities to
experience His amazing and powerful works
in our life.

We will complete our study of “Glory Days”
before June 2022 and will confirm our next
book to be studied through prayers during
the summertime. We appreciate the
fellowship and accompanying of one
another in our study and practice of living a
life in Glory Days in 2021 and look forward fo
binding and supporting each other more
closely in His Love in 2022.

“But if we walk in the light, as he is in the light,
we have fellowship with one another, and
the blood of Jesus, His Son, purifies us from all
sin.” =1 John 1:7
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BEH - Davi remiah B+ rchin Study material: Searching for Heaven on

BEH avid Jeremiah 18- Searc 9 Earth by Dr. David Jeremiah

for Heaven On Earth - Average attendance: 16 people

EHEFEAE 16 A Leaders: Deacon Hoytson Wong & Dr. Lilian
Wong

#& : Hoytson Wong #l Dr. Lilian Wong We encourage cell members to take turn to
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Unicol (1) - Jennifer Yu and Beatrice Woo

In the beginning of 2021, we had around 6-8
consistent attendees but near the end of the
year we could see how online cell was
deterring many from coming due to their
difficulty engaging and focusing during cell.
God has been faithful with bringing who He
chose to bring and brought about the
creation of a discipleship group with a few
core cell members. Within this discipleship
group, we have been praying for the other
cell members and asking God to bring about
a spiritual revival and vibrancy. By the end of
2021, we had begun discermning how we
could restructure the Unicol cells in light of the
leadership changes. Now that we're well into
2022, it is clear that God is using discernment
process as a way to catalyze conversations
that allow cell members to deconstruct/
reconstruct their faiths. Praise God!

Unicol (2) - Clement Chan

As the pandemic carries on, the Unicol 2 cell
was given grace fo persevere and confinue
meeting online for prayer, worship and bible
study. In 2021, we studied the book of John,
as well as watched the series “The Chosen.”
Attendance has normally been
approximately 8, including the three leaders.
As we enter the second half of 2022, this cell
will be undergo reorganization with Unicol 3.
Our dear brother Ryan Lee will be aleader for
one of the two groups.

Prayer ltem: for God to use the cell leaders
and members wherever they should be
called to be.
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Unicol (3) - Luke Zhang

In 2021, Unicol 3 flourished through serving
and Bible study. We created care packages
for Toronto City Mission, published a rap video
on 1 John, and reached out to severdl
seekers in our community. We thank God for
these blessings despite the struggles of
birthing a new cell during these times.

It has been a wonderful experience growing
in the Lord together, but now | wil be
returning fo the States so my cell will be
passed down to the other Unicol leaders.
Pray that the Lord softens our hearts to be
open to this big change and to seek Jesus
first and foremost in everything.

Young Adults - Santos Chan

Through the course of the pandemic, our cell
has learned to seek unity and love people
with  different, real needs of meefing
in-person or online. This has been both a hard
and blessing time to us.

Our members have been growing and taking
on roles in leadership and service in our
church as we transition back and forth from
online to hybrid ministries including youth
ministry, Sunday school, production team,
worship team, and preparing to start new cell
groups. Praise God for all the fruit we are
bearing in this challenging time!
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Friday Night Cell - Max Fang

In 2021, Friday Night Cell contfinued to meet
online. Our demographic is primarily those
who are in their early careers/working life and
there are approximately 7 regular attendees.
We completed the Experiencing God study
book and a different member shared each
week how God was working in their lives.

Prayer Items:

e For open and honest discussions as each
member continues to share each week

e For God to work in the lives of those who
have stopped attending to bring them
back

e For God's guidance as we anficipate
returning to in-person meetings this
Summer

Career Cell - Kevin Lau

The career cell meets every Friday evening
in-person at our members’ homes for
fellowship and Bible discussions. 2021
continued to be a challenging year for our
members as we adapted to Covid
restrictions. After finishing our study on wisdom
and Psalms we transitioned to movie
discussions and tough questions. We also
have a social once a month.
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Please pray for:

1. Spiritual growth

2. Newcomers and members who don't at-
tend anymore.

Healing

God's guidance.
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Praise God as Aaron and Ying's family have
arrived on-field in Southeast Asial

The English congregation has sponsored a
total of 40 compassion kids in Thailand. Praise
God for blessing us with finances and a
generous heart!

The English Missions Subcommittee will be
undergoing a time of fransition for its mem-
bers and roles. Please pray for God o call a
new team of missional leaders to serve in this
committee.

Due to the uncertainties of the pandemic, we
have continued a pause in planning for
in-person short term missions.
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2021 was a busy year for our Social Concern
Committee. Even though the pandemic
continued unabated, the Grace Christian
Food Share (GCFS - Food Bank) continued in
its wonderful ministry of helping the most
desperate in our neighbourhood - both
through physical and social blessings. In
contrast with other Food Banks in our
community, GCFS has a personal relationship
with our clients, and many were aided with
more than food assistance. 2021 saw
improvements in both the facilities of our
Food Bank and the operations through
technology and finances. We thank the
many volunteers, both old and new, incl. our
coordinator (Deaconess Dora Yeung) who
did so much work and her recent
replacement, Joanne Chan.

As in previous years, our congregation got
involved with various social concerns in our
community and around the world, including:

* ministering to people’'s mental health
through our funding and participation in the
CAP-M  (church partnership) with  Living
Waters Counseling Centre (increased greatly
during this pandemic)

* World Vision's Global 6K walkathon (to raise
money for clean water in Africa)

* monthly sponsoring of over 40 children in
Thailand through Compassion Canada

* informing our congregation about issues
with Bill C-4 (regarding conversion therapy)

* parficipation in the Presence Caregivers
Support Group
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We are very grateful to Aaron Mok, who has
chaired this group faithfully and well over that
last 5 years. He has now moved on to even
greater sacrifice and commitment to our Lord
through full-time missions overseas with his
family, so we are currently looking for a
replacement. May our Lord bless Aaron and
his family and contfinue to make them fruitful
and a blessing fo even more people in the
futurel
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Terence Ma

As for my testimony, | was fortunate to be
born to a Christian family where | was taught
about our state of sin and the need for
forgiveness, and about Jesus's love, mercy,
grace, and his invitation for eternal salvation.
| approached my mother to pray with me to
accept Jesus to be in my life at the age of
seven. Over the years, the extent of my
sinfulness became more apparent, especially
as | entered high school and then into
university. | found myself addicted to various
ungodly activities which have since been
removed from my life, thanks to God's grace.
At the age of fifteen, my aunt passed from
cancer, and | found myself doubting the
purpose of prayer. | also realized because of
this incident that | had taken God to be a
genie of some sort, and that He only existed
to make me happy or help me succeed in
school. During this fime, | never really took
much of what | read in the Bible to heart, and
saw reading it as mainly a chore. This mindset
changed in university when | encountered
peers who, unlike many of the church peers |
had in high school, actually took their faith
seriously and independently pursued a God-
glorifying way of living and community
interaction. This rubbed off on me, and |
began to read the Bible seriously and take
notes. | began to see God as being the one |
should serve, rather than having it the other
way around. | have been fransformed over
time in the way that | interact with others and
in self-conftrol. Although the process was slow
before university, | still believe God began His
great work in me at a young age and was
baptized in grade 11. 1 am sfill very much a
sinner and will probably look back at this time
period and say | wasn't as mature as | will be.
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Sandra Huang

Raised in a Christian household and being
exposed to God so much

e |just believed that Christ is my saviour and
that | was a sinner because it was just frue

e First time confessing sins grade 2, but how
genuine?

¢ Never redlly did anything about my
faith or fried to prioritize God more
(didn't take much action)

Genesis fellowship - taught me to prioritize
God in my life

¢ Faith-based discussions and seeing other
people’s relationships with God

e Elim, Denise, and Roxanne - Accountabil-
ity

¢ Habits like doing devos, praying for others,
even More faith-based discussions

Learn to rely on God

e It's a bit of a joke, but family recently just
says “God's plan” when deadling with
something they're worrying too much
about

Never really planned to be baptized
e Baptism class just because people | knew
were going

e  Went with the mindset that | didn’t have
to be baptized if | didn't want to

From baptism class, though, | learned

e Anyone who believes that Jesus Christ
died for our sins and anyone who wants
to have a closer relationship with Him is
ready fo get baptized
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¢ Matthew 28:19-20 “Therefore go and
make disciples of all nations, baptizing
them in the name of the Father and of the
Son and of the Holy Spirit, and teaching
them to obey everything | have
commanded you."”

From this, it was God’'s command for Me to
get baptized (personally)

e | redlized that | knew that | am a sinner
and that | need Jesus, because He died
for our sins, and that | did want a closer
relationship with Him.

o still was worried

e But, God’'s plan

And | still think that it's so amazing that from
when God told us to baptize “in the name of
the Father and of the Son and of the Holy
Spirit,” to the moment I'm getting baptized
will always be part of His plan, even if it's not
necessarily part of my plan.

Denise Wong

| was born and raised in a Christian family
and attended church since | was a child. |
learned about God and Jesus' sacrifice for
us, but never understood how it related fo
me. | loved singing worship songs and
collecting stickers in Sunday School, but | did
not have a true relationship with God.

| began attending a Friday fellowship group,
worship services, and listening to pastors’
preachings in Grade 7. | remember a sermon
where Pastor Michelle encouraged our
congregation to read the whole Bible within
a year, and | did. My devotions were not
always consistent, but as | studied God's
Word, | started understanding God's power
and His plans for me.
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In the same vyear, | had some
misunderstandings with several of my closest
friends at school. They started becoming
more distant from me, and | felt very hurt and
betrayed. | questioned God and asked Him
why this had to happen to me. | prayed with
my family, and God gave me strength
through the Bible. One verse particularly
stood out to me and reminded me how God
would never leave me: “Be strong and
courageous. Do not be afraid or terrified
because of them, for the LORD your God
goes with you; he will never leave you or
forsake you,” Deuteronomy 31:6. At that point
in time, | decided to accept Jesus as my
personal Saviour, and | admitted that | was a
sinner. | knew that | needed Jesus, and |
wanted to follow Him throughout the rest of
my life.

Last year | joined an accountability group.
This group strengthens my faith and allows me
to reflect on how God has worked in my life.
It allows me to see how much God has
blessesd me and how God has made a
difference in my faith. Each week, we would
pray for each other, and | quickly learned
that God really does listen to our prayers.
God answered many of my prayers, even the
simplest ones, like giving me wisdom and
strength to finish my school assignments.
Through this accountability group, | learned
the importance of prayer and being
dependent on God.

| am now spending more fime with my
Christian friends and continuing fo mature in
my faith. | am learning to trust God and rely
on Him more. | now devote more fime to
prayer and devotions, and | fry to prioritize
him in my life. All these have helped confirm
my faith in Jesus, and now | have a desire o
get baptized.
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Although | lost my friends, | have found God. |
pray that one day our friendship will be
reconciled and give me the opportunity to
share the good news of Jesus with them. |
tfrust that he will be watching me throughout
my whole life, and | believe that everything
that happens to me will be in accordance
with his plans as Romans 8:28 says, “And we
know that in all things God works for the good
of those who love him, who have been
called according to his purpose.”

Roxanne

Hello, my name is Roxanne. | was born in the
church and went to Sunday school from a
very young age. | was never really confident
about my faith, making it hard to grow my
relationship with Christ.

Not being confident in my faith was one thing
| lacked. However, in general, | lacked a lot
of self-worth. Self-love was something that
didn't exist when | was younger. Love from
others was something | didn't experience a
lot. It got me in my feels, of “What is love?”
Sure, my family loved me, but when you are
younger, being constantly yelled at made it
feel like | wasn't loved. Even though many
fimes it was my fault, other times | felt like a
target. | Constantly felt darts of complaints
about how smart, athletic, talented, and
everything about how much better my
brother is compared to me. The thought of
how | couldn't keep up with my brother
corrupted my mind.

It led to my mind full of thoughts of ways |
could constantly strive to be better than my
brother. It led to “how do | be better than my
friendse”, to “how do | be befter than
everyone?"” Those questions lead to “Why do
| even trye What's the point¢ I'm nothing
anyways... No one will care if I'm gone. Does
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anyone even care about me? Does God not
love me?2”

Eventually, the thoughts turned into actions:
crying in a bathroom for an hour wondering
what the point of my life is, crying to sleep
because I'm a horrible person, wanting to
end my life because | didn't think it was worth
it, picking about every little thing that was
wrong with me, whether | wasn't a kind
enough person, smart enough, pretty
enough...

At church, | felt like | wasn't every enough.
Everyone around me was kind, prefty,
smart... and it seemed like they had their life
together. Everyone who said they were
Christian seemed to be perfect... It created a
false idea of every Christian is perfect in my
mind.

In grade 7, Genesis held an activity in the
sanctuary. They asked us to pray and reflect
on a few questions. After, we would walk info
a room dependent on how we answered the
question. When | opened the door, | saw
pastor Michelle. She had open arms to talk
about how | was feeling. | told her
everything... about how | hated myself....
didn't feel good enough for anything, and |
was terrified to label me as Christian because
| was this broken person who had the muster
seed of faith. She told me that Christ loved
me, and sinners are who need Christ.
Everyone needs Christ no matter who they
are and if | believe | should consider baptism.

| dwelled on the idea that everyone needs
Christ and that one and only God loves me,
that Jesus Christ died on the cross for my sins.
Eventually, | came to the recognition that |
needed Christ and wanted to be baptized.
Though my doubts were sfill there, in the
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summer of grade 8, Elim asked if | wanted to
do an accountability group. | said yes
because | wanted to know about Christ
before | start a baptism class. After a couple
of months of accountability, it hit June and
baptism classes started. | took them to see if |
wanted to be baptized. After baptism class, |
revisited the idea that everyone needed
Christ and if | believe | should get baptized.
Here | am...

After years of self-doubt, and a year of
growing and strengthening my faith, |
became more aware that everyone needed
Christ. Each day I'm growing my faith and am
reminded to not worry if someone loves me,
who | am, and why I'm here... Matthew 6:34
“Therefore do not worry about tfomorrow, for
tomorrow will worry about itself. Each day has
enough trouble of its own.” Christ is with me
today, tomorrow, eternity.

Evangel

| was born into a Christian family where both
of my parents went to church with me every
Sunday. However, | also fell away at a young
age when | moved to Canada. | went fo a
church that was mainly English and Mandarin
speaking. As a Cantonese speaker, | had no
clue how to speak any of those languages. |
then got bullied and excluded from groups. |
hated going to church, | had no friends, and |
did not understand what was going on most
of the time due to the language barrier. My
family eventually stopped going to church
because | wouldn't want to go Sunday
mornings. For the rest of my elementary
school and half of high school life, | was not
involved in a church. | found myself focusing
on trying to get people to like me, | was
closed-minded and being quite selfish. It only
took a few years and God to make me
realize that these things don't matter.
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In grade 10, a friend of mine asked me to go
to church with him. | was hesitant and told
him the story about my experience. However,
he encouraged me to try it out because it's
important to have a relationship with God
and that's how | found Grace! | went fo
Grace for a solid period until | got into a non-
Christian relationship and fell out again. Fast
forward to the first year of university, | gof
accepted into Waterloo, | moved info a new
city, my parents were back in Toronto, | broke
up with my boyfriend at the time. | felt alone
and sad. | had no motivation to do
schoolwork, | wanted to drop out. However,
the same friend that brought me to Grace
reached out to me and asked if | wanted to
go to a Korean Christian Fellowship with him. |
said yes. | remember the first song that was
played during worship was Who am | by
Casting Crowns, the first verse “Who am |,
that the lord of all the Earth would care to
know my name, would care to feel my hurte”
and that was the first time I've felt God'’s love,
the first time | didn’t feel alone anymore, and
| felt God's presence.

After that day, | readlized that God never left
me, | am a sinner, and | need Jesus Christ in
my life. He died on the cross for my sin and
gave me a new life. | remember coming
back to my dorm at 2 am being excited to
read a chapterin the bible. | wanted to learn
more about God and build a relationship with
Him, | then slowly realized changes in my
day-to-day life, | wanted to spread the
gospel with my best friend and roommate —
though they were reluctant about if, | was
more willing to listen to others. | was no longer
self-orientated; | was more kind and able to
show love to my friends. | stopped pushing
God away and started to rely on him. |
recognized the sacrifice He made for me and
was so grateful that He welcomed me home
with open arms again.
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but | know that God will love me regardless
through my failures, my imperfect self and He
will be with me for the rest of my life giving
me strength along the way. “So do not fear,
for | am with you; do not be dismayed, for |
am your God. | will strengthen you and help
you; | will uphold you with my righteous right
hand.” —Isaiah 41:10

Thank you for listening to my testimony!
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MANDARIN MINISTRY

{EXII4ZEM Rev. Dali Ren

The COVID-19 pandemic was sfill serious in
2021, but looking back on the Mandarin
Ministry in the past year, | am full of gratitude.
Because all the members served as one, the
attendances of online Sunday worship,
Sunday school, and group meetings were
stable. Brothers and sisters in each group
stayed connected, cared for each other,
pursued spiritual growth together, and ftried
their best to outreach, evangelize, and
participate in missions in various ways. A
special Good Friday worship was held on
April 2nd, with the choir singing "Amazing
Grace". Physical worship resumed smoothly
on October 12th, and more than 30 brothers
and sisters returned fo the church fo
participate in worship.

During the quarantine period, brothers and
sisters still cared for each other, connected
with each other, helped new brothers and
sisters integrate into the church, led seekers to
believe in the Lord, and supported new
believers to grow. At the Mandarin Church
Membership Meeting on March 7th, six
brothers and sisters transferred: Li Cheng, Xie
Minfang, Yu Jing, Liu Xiuju, Lin Jun, and Lin
Jing. Two baptisms were also held this year:
Sister Jin Pingping was baptized in Auditorium
A on the afternoon of July 11th; three
brothers and sisters, including Pan Xiaohua, Li
Ronghua, and Jiang Linlin, were baptized on
December 12th, and Gan Ying, You Bixia, Liu
Qiong, and Wang Shuyang were also
fransferred.

The following is a brief review of the Ministries:

1) Discipleship and spiritual training:

e On the evening of April 3rd, an online
testimonial-sharing session was held. Eight
brothers and sisters shared their gratitude
and testimonies of life growth.

e Retreat: An online summer retreat was
held from July 9th to 11th. The speaker
was Pastor Su Wenfeng, and the theme
was "Give Your Heart fo Me".
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MANDARIN MINISTRY

{EAXII4%EM Rev. Dali Ren

e Sunday School: The attendance was
about 90-100 students per semester. The
second phase of the "Walking with the
Lord Spiritual  Exercise" started in
September this year, combining Sunday
school, daily devotfions and spiritual
conversations to practice self-knowledge,
following Christ, seeking life renewal and
living out the fullness of Christ. 60 brothers
and sisters participated.

2) Outreach and evangelism:

e Personal evangelism: Deacon Yan Jinhua
led some members to preach the gospel
in the community.

¢ '"Positive Discipline" Lectures on Parenting
Children, started in September, on the first
and third Friday nights of each month, the
lecturer is Preacher Pan Heyihuag, led by
Mrs. Ren and 9 members, about 50
people attended.

e Inspiration Course: Led by Mrs. Xiao Lu
Yunmei, from December to February next
year, nearly 20 members and more than
30 seekers participated.

e A Christmas Gospel Gala held at the
church on the evening of Dec 24th:
Speaker Dr. Xu Wuhao, with the theme "A
Different Christmas".

¢ A total of five brothers and sisters decided
fo believe in the Lord this year

3) Mission: Sister Chen Anyan and her son
and daughter participated in the New Hope
Ministry’s short mission in Honduras in late
August, sharing God's love and preaching
the gospel to the local people, and
experienced God’s presence and help along
the way. She experienced growth in faith and
life, and after returning, she made a good
testimony among church brothers and sisters.
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1 X4 EF Rev. Dali Ren

4) BHE LT 4) Pastoral staff

o FREFEEBET2021FE58A31HBEESE e Preacher Guo lJianping decided fo stop
- - o —_ serving in the Mandarin Ministry after one
BE—FHRE REABEEEZENR year of service as an intern preacher on
=. May 31, 2021.

e Pastor Ren went on Sabbath Leave from

July 12th to October 3rd, during which
o EHYTE7B12HEN0A3HAKRZEER - Pastor Xiao oversaw the Mandarin

N e — ministry.
BRI MR R EIEEET - nisiry

5) In 2021, there were eight deacons in the
Mandarin  Ministry:  Liang Dazhao (Vice

5) 2021FEBENESAE)/\UNE : EKXE Chairman, Worship - Reception and
_ L s R Welcome, Teaching and Nurturing, Clerical),
(BIER - REF-HENAF - BHSEE - Edwin Ge (Membership), David Feng (IT/AV),
N A O , Vivian Li (Worship), Gao Tianshu (Missions),
XH) BIFE(ak)  BF(IT/AV) - = Yan Jinhua (Evangelism), Shawn Dan
B (EH) SRS (EF)  EAalt (EE (Caring)., Simon Song (Building and Social
Relafions).
F) BRI (RB) - R™ (%F - Rt
2) -
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ESMEF - E2{ WELCOME & RECEPTION, EDUCATION
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(Vice President, Worship-Welcome and
Reception, Education, Secretary)

My two main responsibilities in the deacon
board are: Welcome/Reception, and Sunday
school. Due to the impact of the epidemic,
the church only opened for physical worship
from Oct 1st to Dec 26th, 2021, and for the
second fime on Feb 13th, 2022. Welcome/
Reception Ministry is largely at a standstill.

We have a very strong team for the
Welcome/Reception ministry: 24 brothers and
sisters are in the Grace Worship reception
WeChat group, ready to welcome new
brothers and sisters and friends. For the
current needs, we have seven brothers and
sisters doing the hospitality work: Andie, Gao
Tianshu, Sarah Yu, Linda zhang, Helen Wu,
Zhao Liyan, Liang Dazhao. We made some
covid-19 reagents testing before the opening
of physical worship on Oct 1st, 2021, provided
fraining on the use of Check in APP, to ensure
that worship is relatively structured and safe.

Sunday School Ministry is primarily the work of
the pastor; we cooperated with the pastor to
meet with Sunday school teachers to arrange
Sunday School for each quarter, currently
(Dec 2021-Feb 2022) there are four classes:
the Enlightenment course, a brief overview of
the Bible (two classes), and "Spiritual Walk
with God Practice" class. From March 2022 to
May 2022, we will have three classes: "Mark
Gospel" study (two classes), and "Spiritual
Walk with God Practice" class. We are also
making a long-term Sunday school plan. 1,
myself, am currently participating in the
"Spiritual Walk with God Practice" class.

2021 Annual Report EE®RE



BIZEEE T MANDARIN MINISTRY

{EAXII4%EM Rev. Dali Ren

S F - E2{ WELCOME & RECEPTION, EDUCATION

2K B8 Richard Liang

(Bo@EsE) i (A1) - SEETR
B8% - 3ITPMRERZE - HMWEEFE—T
KEWEHZMX - HECHIIZS 5[

TRIBRE RE -

BFFREC2021 FESET - BSORBHMTA
BiNE - BRIAZEAK - HENESE
EATRERGEIHAFMHECSSH/NA - H
SNBSS EZHEAENEE - 5 LIk
WREDPZEFEHERHEL  READPRHEE
% o XIBRBNESERTREREZEFE IR
A ARENBENEHRE - WRAMKRS® -
FULLRZ KA - it R EZERN
TEBBAVERZED ANEBRME QS - TR
XERAARTEABNIXNAEBR -
MM ERTEN] ; WRAAER - FAIRMN =
Full H5/FLAZ2EH - REHEBHK
NEHHKERN—F7T -

Looking back on my own ministry in 2021, |
really didn't do anything specific, but the
church is growing, | saw that in the group |
participated in the Sunday School
class- brothers and sisters were willing to be
more infimate with the Lord Jesus. The spiritual
sharing of the brothers and sisters has made
very good progress, and | have benefited a
lot from it. | also thought of one of the lessons
in our spirifual practice of walking with the
Lord: The purpose of man’'s creation is to
praise, fear and serve God, and thus
experience God’s salvation. Everything on
earth was created to help us achieve this
purpose in life. If these things serve our
purpose in life, we use them; if they hinder us,
we should let them go. Doing/Serving in @
Ministry is not a goal, it is just a way to help us
experience God's salvation.

SR BHE5ETE COMMUNITY, MEMBERSHIP, & EVENTS

BIEHZE Deacon Edwin Ge

1. Covid19 AR1TH 2021 FNRMEE - H=
RE D IS B EA LT - BECSIT/AVER 1HE
ENEERAZEHRFE -
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1. Covid19 was sfill rampant in 2021, most of
church activities were online. With the
coordination of the IT/AV Ministry, Sunday

Services were streamed online.
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SR B ESETE COMMUNITY, MEMBERSHIP, & EVENTS

BIE#EE Deacon Edwin Ge
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# (Richard Li ), #8035 ( Fanny Xie ), £I5
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(HERIIHENEIR) : 45 ( Pingping Gou )
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(Ying Gan) -
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2. According to the church constitution, @
case of member violation of discipline was
dealt with, and member discipline was
enforced.

3. Aftendance at the Online Conference hit
an all-fime high.

4, GCGCNY Mandarin Membership Transfer
on Mar 7, 2021 (faciliated by Rev. Ren) :
Maggie Jing Yu, Richard Li, Fanny Xie, Sophia
Liu , John Lin, Jenna Lin.

5. GCGCNY Mandarin Baptism on July 11,
2021 (faciliated by Rev. Ren) : Pingping Gou.

6. GCGCNY Mandarin  Bapfism and
Membership Transfer on Dec 12 , 2021

(faciliated by Rev. Ren): baptism : Pan Xiao-
hua, Li Ronghua, Jiang Linlin ; Membership
Transfer : Julia Pi-Hsia Yu, Liu Qiang, Wang

Shuyan, Gan Ying.
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Everyone serves on the Worship Team: Jiefan's
singing techniques and music theory fraining,
James' Cloud Worship music
synthesis, Sister Daisy's design and creation of
worship videos, Sister Wu Yuan's coordination
of the preparation of Christmas hymns, each
brother and sister taking turns leading the
weekly meeting, etc.

Psalm (150:6) All that has breath, praise the
Lord! Praise the Lord!

1. Physical connection through outdoor
activities in the early stage of the
epidemic.

2. When physical gatherings were not
possible, we kept the Zoom meetings
every Thursday. We completed eight
online studies on worship and basic music
theory. Currently, some members are
participating in the online lecture on
"Worship after God's Will".

3. Recording of Cloud Worship Dedication
for Christmas 2020 and Easter 2021.

4. 2021 Christmas: 13 Dedications for
Brothers and Sisters to participate in
physical worship

5. Two sisters joined the worship

Psalm (133:1) Behold, how good and how
beautiful it is for brothers to live together in
harmony!

We hope that brothers and sisters with
musical gifts will join the team!
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BF#E Deacon David Feng
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iz Zoom + YouTube
BoEI:  Open Broadcaster Software

+YouTube
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Church:

¢ Operation Mode: Cantonese + English +
Mandarin / AV +IT

¢ Challenge: How to cooperate with the
Church's work during the Epidemic

e Main projects: audio and video, network,
equipment upgrade, website

Mandarin Ministry:

¢ Remote Mode: Zoom + YouTube
¢ Hybrid Mode: Open Broadcaster Software
+YouTube

Team:
e Current Members: 4
e Planned Growth: +2

{E378 EVANGELISM
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B £ {6# 535 Deacon Yan Jinhua

First of all, thank God that in the past year,
although the epidemic raged, it did not
hinder the pace of evangelism on the first
Saturday of every month.

Second, God is really a God who listens to
prayers. One time, it rained non-stop for half
an hour before departure. | thought, how
could | go out and preach the gospel? There
is only prayer, and wonderful things happen,
when the rain stops and the sun goes out
(thank you), and every time you go to the

2021 Annual Report EE®RE




BIZEEE T MANDARIN MINISTRY

{EAXII4%EM Rev. Dali Ren

{85378 EVANGELISM

iE) £ TE#ZE Deacon Yan Jinhua

Elm. AR EZRRMNOESKRNINE— LR
BIFEERAR..

BR - RS EHRSNKEB TR —EEES
MEXEREE - BEmE - AFHMINR
WABLEEN  ERDEBRREEZHABNS
SMBER ; AN FEREEREN ; BRI
FHFASNEBEZN - GEREEERVZA0
MBEREEERN ; ABEEHIR...

I]]

FN - HEUESRFE  KEZRMEZLE
EIEEIEER - EEEEBIBASI - BE
E-LEEERELNZ ? FTZRAMAZEH
c—EPMmESBKEERIOBIBA - XM

851t - RER Y M2/ ekKARY - B
BN INIFEME - K EENEN -
NANNBEE -

;

fi0

Fh - MEEMANEEZFEE'BERKRE"HE
REILT - AEBIER R RKES - FFRINA

=TZUMARSN  BREFERER - 18
MEWERE. B FBLEZIRWA - EH5
TR R R ERIE A NRERER - SR IIEY
REARARE |

76 | Page

park, the community, or the supermarket... He
always listens to our cries and moves to
prepare people who are wiling to listen to
the gospel...

Once again, thank God for raising up
brothers and sisters in the church to work
together with God to prosper the gospel, go
out to preach, and see the results of the work:
those who rejected the gospel were willing to
read the Bible and have the opportunity to
attend meetings after visiting; some listened
to the gospel and were willing to think after
the sermon; some believe in Jesus and do not
attend meetings, but were willing to return to
the church; some were determined to
believe in the Lord; and some were
stubborn...

Fourth, He is the God of Immanuel: Last year's
Christmas Evangelism Service was during the
severe period of the epidemic. | was
preparing to go out and invite people to
participate. There were some voices around
saying: Who dares to take it2 Before
Christmas Eve, two people took 100 copies of
the church’s evangelistic leaflets and went to
the supermarket to invite people. The sky was
snowing, and it fook more than an hour to
finish  distributing the leaflets. It really
exceeded our thoughts and we experienced
His presence and joy, because people need
the Lord.

Fifth, He is the Lord who cares for others. Last
year, through the "Inspiration Course" training,
we prayed for the invited relatives and
friends. At the beginning of the course, more
than 30 friends participated, some of them
were seekers and some were weak
believers...| saw that God is truly merciful to
people, using brothers and sisters to spread
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the gospel to invite people to know Jesus,
and to establish a good relationship with Him.
Thank the Lord!

Finally, sharing a poem:

1. Behold, the harvest is ripe in the field,
where is the harvestere You ask the Lord
of the harvest to send laborers to reap,
and in My Name to go into the world to
preach the gospel of the Kingdom of
Heaven, to teach all nations to be My
disciples, and to obey all My teachings

2. 2. Lord, Your servant is here, reverently
waiting for Your command, sincerely
offering a humble life, may | be the Lord's
little donkey, let me persevere with a
shepherd's heart, bring back lost sheep to
You, be saved by Faith and receive new
life, out of the darkness into the light.

Z={& MISSIONS

=X & ¥ Deacon Gao Tianshu
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Time flies so fast, and another year has
passed in the blink of an eye. The past two
years have been plagued by the epidemic,
which did not help the Missions Ministry gain
any momentum. An overview of last yearis as
follows:

1. On April 3, 2021, an Easter Testimonial
Sharing session was held, which was
facilitated by Rev. Ren, his wife, Richard
Liang, and the team leaders.

2. On July 17, 2021, a Mission Withess Meet-
ing was held. Under the leadership and
guidance of Rev. Ren and Pastor Xiao
and the support of brothers and sisters,
the meeting "Save the Next Generation"
was held online. Thanks to the Lord, Cady
from the Mandarin Congregation was
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moved to ftake her two children to
participate in the Honduras Short Mission in
August.

3. Thank the Lord, the Annual Mission Meeting
was held on January 28 and 29, 2021.
Under the leadership of Rev. Ren, Pastor
Zhuang was invited to be a lecturer at the
Mandarin Services. Thanks to Rev. Ren, the
three sermons were successful. The
feedback from the brothers and sisters has
been very good and | have gained a lof.

The new year has begun, and the epidemic is
coming to an end. There is no reason to stop
the Honduras Mission. The short-term mission is
scheduled for three days from July 2 to 9, July
9 to 16, and July 18 to 29. During the time
period, | hope that more brothers and sisters
can parficipate in the Honduras family
briefing.

R CARING

BB 4L # 2 Deacon Shawn Dan
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1. Establish a prayer WeChat group for those

in need

2. Study the Bible or pray with the needy
members

3. Telephone care and comfort

4. Home visits

5. Help with practical difficulties

encountered by those in need
6. Provide physical or financial support to
those in need
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Church-wide Building Ministry is a role that
requires a lot of expertise. | have no
professional advice to offer.

During the year, | dealt with the co-workers of
the building department: an outsider
sneaked into the church to play football; an
oufsider sneaked garbage into the church’s
frash can; we added surveillance cameras,
etc.

The service of the church Social Ministry is
mainly in the Food Bank. With the changes in
the epidemic, the Food Bank has also made
corresponding adjustments to ensure that
food can be safely delivered to customers.

We contacted Compassion Canada to
come to Mandarin Congregation to testify,
broadcast, and translate promotional videos,
brothers and sisters of Mandarin
Congregation actively participated in
sponsoring  children in  Thailand and
Myanmar.
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Wu Yuan

These two Sunday School classes by Rev. Siu
were fitled "Ten Lessons in Paul's Theology". To
be honest, | was a little hesitant when | first
considered signing up, because | know myself
well. For the first ten years after | was
“baptized, | basically did not read the Bible,
and it was only in the last two or three years
that | started to read it seriously. Without a
basic understanding of the Bible, | knew |
would most likely not be able to keep up with
this class, but since my husband signed up, |
thought | would try it out.

Since | didn't understand a lot of the
“background knowledge in the Bible, | was
stumped in the first class, and couldn't
“understand what the author was trying to
express. Persistence can make up for
“clumsiness. If | could not understand it after
reading it the first time, | just kept reading it
few more times, and then discussed and
studied it, together with my husband and cell
group members more, and slowly | was able
to grasp it a little bit more at a time. Paying
attention to repetitions, key words, contrasts,
and metaphors in the Scriptures really helped
me understand what the writer was writing
about.

One day | was studying the faith section of
Paul's epistles, and | felt as if the Holy Spirit
was helping me connect with what the
teacher from Scriptures | was seeing.
(Ephesians 2:10a): “For we are God'’s
“handiwork, created in Christ Jesus..." So we
can believe in God, not because of
“ourselves, but due to God's work and God's
gift. "Faith" means complete and
“unconditional reliance, and unconditional
trust in God. Often, | would say "l will pray for
you" to others, but then turn around and
“forget about it, like a polite "I'll freat you to
dinner another time." | suddenly understood
the reason why | often forgot to pray,

2021 Annual Report EE®RE



aBE B8 MANDARIN CONGREGATION TESTIMONIES

ETRNMOEXBETHRRESHINE. (B
2:13] AAMIRLETE, &2 HEFII0
Biz1T, AERHRNES. [32:10F]
""" AEMFANTE, B2 TR IUHEA]
17R9. RERINBTENOE, RS
A9, FTLAAERBREREHIREEES, T
FHABEENSRES, XEREMN—ER
RTIE.

MER, HEISIRFHMEEINARLR, &
BIBREFIENATHAGETRISIE, B4

CERIRBEAATIR, BBRTHEREAR
. XS, PBETHSHEERNR.
IS, B—UNENERNMH, MEERE
H. ESER—REIRBRERETR, HKEZZ0
RO, FARXEIE, e TRIIE
SRR, H—ENESAUANRR, BERR
— 1zl FRUBEEETICHS, BHLRER
MR —THE T, X—REHERREST—
PNEERIRZ, BAHBEATHAREIERF
%, FRABHAMRNERILIECERE
B, MERERGEHEMEKRSLTETNF

-

o

BRI EIIE S, TRERBUFEIZIEB
REYOEE, EERERAAHIIERES, AR
5. . ESHREHR, BIRZNEN
o], HLFFTHRES, 77—/, FANE
A ARARBDEERXEHMALERZL, RE
. RERMNER: “B&F, B—EHEX

81 | Page

because | did not really understand that
praying to God is to let God do the work, not
to make excuses, and then try to take confrol
the outcome myself.

The next two verses also revealed a lot to me.
(Philippians 2:13): “for it is God who works in
you to will and to act in order to fulfill his good
purpose.” (Ephesians 2:10b) “...to do good
works, which God prepared in advance for
us to do.” It turns out that our desire to do
good works, is also prepared in advance by
God. So do not desire to just enthusiastically
evangelize, pray earnestly for the unbelievers,
this is one very important task that | must do.

Two weeks later, | had the opportunity to
have a conversation with the refreat group
leader, and | mentioned the revelation God
gave me while | was studying the Scriptures
about why | was suddenly enlightened,
understanding that God represented all that |
needed to trust, committed to tfrust, and the
frue meaning of prayer. The God | believe in,
is a true and living God, who lives in me.
Meditating together with Christian sisters, |
recall my feelings at that time, being both
elated and excited, it completely turned
around my concept of prayer. | had always
been skeptical about prayer, believing that it
was just a gesture, so | would forget to pray,
and would just make excuses to God and
carry on. This experience was an important
moment in my life. | seem to understand now
what true peace is. It is not about having
some material things to give me a sense of
security, but the peace that | can have only
by truly believing that God is by my side.

Christian sisters led me in prayer, asking for
the help of the Holy Spirit to take me back to
the mindset of that day, to see again how
the Lord Jesus Christ appeared to me, His
expression, actions, His tfone towards me, and
my feelings about everything. As | peacefully
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prayed, after a short time, | did not know
how, but suddenly | felt that my Heavenly
Father was sitting right beside me, and very
kindly and tenderly saying to me: “My child, |
have always been here, you don't have to
be afraid or worry. When you feel helpless
and powerless, you can come to my arms,
and | will protect you and help you.” The
Heavenly Father put His hand on my shoulder
as He said these words to me, and | felt very
warm, and at peace, so moved that tears
flowed, grateful for my Heavenly Father's
care and steadfastness.

At that moment, | fully realized that God was
with me, and had a completely different
feeling in my heart, and thought “I met the
Lord” and was moved. Thank you, and
praise you Lord, for the grace you overflow
me with, allowing me to taste the flavour of
Your grace, and to become even more
eager to draw near to God. Thank you, Lord,
for time to spend with You every day, in quiet
prayer and meditation in Your presence.
Amen!

Li Ronghua

My cell group leader said, “Today | will give
you a happy task, because the time for the
marriage of the Lamb has come, and the
bride has prepared herself.” Therefore, today
| will give my personal testimony according to
the will of God with Christ Jesus in me, to
rejoice always, to pray without ceasing, and
to give thanks for everything. It is with joy that
| can share my gratitude to God for the past
six months, but first | will say a short prayer.

Our heavenly Father, thank you! Thank you
for giving me this opportunity, under the
guidance of our pastor, to share in front of all
these brothers and sisters who are baptized
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into Jesus Christ who died, was buried, and
raised from the dead by the glory of the
Heavenly Father. We now live as new
creations, with a new lifestyle and way of life.
The old things have passed away, and
everything has become new! | pray to the
Lord today - Jesus give me a peaceful yet
joyful mood to share this most beautiful
moment of my life. In the name of the Lord
Jesus Christ, Amen!

This past May, my emotional life faced a
great challenge. My proud, confident,
self-righteous heart came crashing down. My
spirit was broken, and my emotions had hit
rock bottom, my heart became filled with
hate, full of complaint, | could not let
anything go, and | fell info an extreme
depression. Insomnia- every night became
sleepless, it became non-stop torture. | can't
stop turning to my friends, and even went to
see a psychiatrist. Friend A said | should go
for counseling and do this; friend B said |
should do that; the psychiatrist said | should
do this and that; but all the suggestions only
made me more irritable and anxious, and |
went through a great amount of pain during
that time.

One of my university classmates had gone to
Singapore many years earlier, while | came to
Toronto. We have not been in touch for many
years. She had the idea of visiting Toronto in
May and reached out to me to ask about
what it was like to visit during that time of
year. Since we had not been in touch for
many years, she did not know about my
family situation or relationship status either.

Since | was suffering from insomnia, | was
unable to find any friends to talk with me at
night, I was constantly searching for someone
to talk to, until one day in June, she could not
resist anymore to ask me, why are you not
sleeping at night. When | told her my story,
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about the complaints and anger in my heart,
she calmly responded, “May | pray for you?”
Those were the most beautiful words | had
heard in my life to-date. Her prayer was so
full of gratitude and blessings. It made me
feel that it was still possible for me to have
such feelings. From my former classmate, for
the very first time | felt very real gratefulness.
That was the first night that my heart felt
peace and serenity.

My niece is in China, and | have not been in
contact with her in a long time. | don't even
know why she would always talk fo me, back
in those days. But when | told her about my
doubts and confusion, she did not comment
and did not judge me. Instead, she sent me
a picture of a middle-aged man and a little
girl. My niece told me: the little girl is you, and
the one sitting beside you is Jesus. He has
been always protecting you, by your side!

At that time, my lonely and helpless heart
was suddenly moved, and | feltf like there was
an invisible force behind me. That night, my
heart was peaceful and calm, and | fell
asleep. The following few days, my
classmate would pray for me day and night
and send me her prayers through voice-text.

My niece sent me the Lord's Prayer, which
was so incomprehensible to me at the time.
My niece was obedient fo me, as | am older
than her, and | was already a parent, so how
could | be obedient to here But this one time
it was amazing, the Lord’s work, my niece got
me to read the Lord’s Prayer every day, | was
no different than a little girl in front of my
niece now.

As | started to read the words of the Lord’s
Prayer, she told me to memorize the words. |
paid particular attention to her instructions
this time. | started to memorize it. In other
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words, if my classmate was the right hand of
God extended out to me, then my niece was
the left hand of God reaching out to me. In
this way, the two hands of God pulled me
onto God's back, and started the days of my
walk with God.

On the evening of June 23, my classmate’s
pastor in Singapore, led me in a prayer to
commit my heart to Christ and said she would
intfroduce me to her friend in Toronto, who
would take me to a church that | did not
know where it was located, with a pastor
whose name | did not even know, | was led
one by one, by people that | had never met
to the WeChat account of a pastor's wife.
From when this unknown stranger comforted
me and prayed for me with her gentle, sweet
and demure voice, my heart was conquered
by God's grace for the first time, and | was
deeply attracted, with my tough, proud and
self-righteous heart feeling a tinge of softness
for the very first time.

It turns out there is such beauty in life.
Afterwards, the pastor’s wife arranged for me
to join the Canaan cell. The reception of my
cell group leader made me feel very warm
inside, and the sharing and caring of the
brothers and sisters made me feel like | was
part of a family.

This also allowed me to start my Bible study
journey in the days ahead. God kept
sending me angels non-stop, to help me and
accompany me on this journey of hardship
and repentance.

After joining the Canaan cell group, the
pastor's wife arranged for me to join a
Sunday School group the following weekend.
The leadership of that sister that day showed
me the power of role models. Her
composure, gentleness, and elegance,
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combined with her explanation of the Bible
passages — | told myself this is what | want to
becomel

Thereafter, | had opportunities to share and
pray one-on-one with her, and she taught me
the first will of God for me, is that obedience
will be blessed!

After starting Sunday School, God’s blessing
on me was like a baton pass-off, sending me
one angel after another, to accompany me
on this journey.

A brother started a Wednesday night Bible
study and invited me to participate. This
brother knew my weakness and often prayed
for me with another brother in the group. This
is what the two of them would often leave
with me: Sister Ronghua - when the Bible
moves you, you are understanding the wiill of
God, and you must obey immediately, do
not quench the inspiration of the Holy Spirit,
and ask the Lord to help you! The Lord Jesus
has said: “Very truly | tell you, my Father will
give you whatever you ask in my name.”

May the Lord help us to be humble, gentle,
patient in all things, bear with one another in
love, and bond with one another in peace,
and sfrive to preserve the unity of the Holy
Spirit. Ask the Lord to have mercy on you, to
comfort you, and give you strength. Those
who frust in the Lord will not be ashamed,
and those who wait for the Lord will gain
strength! | need to especially thank these two
brothers!

One day in September, in order to further
encourage me to study the Word of God, a
brother brought me to study the Gospel of
Mark together. A sister in this group took me
on a one-and-a-half-month prayer lifestyle.
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Almost every day, she accompanied me to
understand God’'s Word, she prayed for me,
and the first verse she gave to me to
memorize was: “Hate stirs up conflict, but love
covers over all wrongs.”

When | was suffering insomnia and feeling
helpless, she told me: “Do not worry about
fomorrow, for tomorrow will worry about itself.
Each day has enough frouble of its own."”
She also infroduced me to her family Bible
study group, and | became a member of that
family with the Holy Spirit in the middle of
them. In this way, | have 45 minutes to study
the word of God every day, and this sister
continues to admonish me that | need to
commit everything to Jehovah, rely on Him,
and He will look after it. “Commit to the LORD
whatever you do, and vyour plans will
succeed. Everything has the good will of
God, and his thoughts are higher than our
thoughts, and his ways are higher than the
ways of man”. | checked our chat records.
Over the past two months, there were only 7
days that we did not chat, and that was
because she had to go to church to serve
and preach.

At the same time, there is a sister in the
morning prayer group whom | have never
met. Today she will watch my testimony via
video livestream. She often encourages me
on WeChat and conveys the Word of God to
me. “Trust in the Lord with all your heart and
lean not on your own understanding; in all
your ways submit to him, and he will make
your paths straight.” Also, did you know that
she sings “This is Love” to me in WeChat,
letting me listen to her sing every day as |
commute to and from work, so that | do not
feel lonely, but feel empowered:

Lord, your love saves me

Saves me from sin

Leads me into the Light

To enjoy the abundant life of the Lord.
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This is one of her messages to me on one of
these days: “Sister Ronghua, equip your heart
with the Words of God, and if you have faith,
you will have a foundation. | pray that God
will fake care of you and give you peace
and joy. | pray that the Lord will give you
abundant life and the filling of the Holy Spirit.
Thank you, Lord, Emmanuel!” Words like this
appear in my WeChat messages almost
every day, making me feel warm and
powerfull | am also growing day by day
relying on the strength and deliverance of
the Lord.

During this period, | still experienced fimes of
weakness and Satan's temptations. |
remember one time | called my pastor’s wife
to ask for help. She gave me a few points to
keep in my heart. She said that love is
enduring, not asking for benefits for yourself,
but believe, have hope in all things, and do
what is right. Doing the right thing- | really
don't know how to do the right thing. This
sentence bothered me for a few days, and |
couldn't find the answer. One day on my way
home from work, | unconsciously recalled the
pastor's  sermon on Thanksgiving, He
mentioned that we will still have sullen
moods, anxiety and fear, so we must learn to
pay attention to all the graces of God in life,
that is, to always rejoice, to pray unceasingly,
and to be thankful for everything!

The work of the Holy Spirit suddenly helped
me find the answer to the task that my
pastor's wife gave me, i.e. to do the right
thing, whatever is the right, to do the right
thing, always rejoice, pray without ceasing,
give thanks in everything, | need to practice
this every day!

A brother in the Kindness Cell Group once
fold me that we must believe in our Lord
Jesus, and we must have faith in harmony
with what we hear. He was telling me not
only fo read the scriptures well, but also to
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live out the likeness of Christ. | remember the
verse that the brothers in the Unity Cell Group
mentioned. Jesus was alone on the shore,
and the disciples had a hard time rowing the
boat because the wind was blowing fierce.
But when Jesus got into the boat, the wind
camed down. This verse matched my
experience over the previous six months. Six
months ago, | did not have the Lord Jesus in
my heart. | was in a state of uncertainty,
panic, and fear. Once the Holy Spirit came
info my heart more and more each day, He
gave me peace and serenity in my heart,
and lives with me!

| am grateful for every brother and sister who
accompanied me along the way, but in the
end, | would like to thank one person in
particular. She was the most precious gift
God gave me more than 20 years ago. Since
she came into this world, we have never
been separated. We lived and grew up
together. After she became an adult, our
relationship changed. Sometimes she was like
a mother, other times like a daughter, so
much that we became not only good friends,
but best friends. By the grace of the Lord that
she took a day off today to share with me the
most important moment in my life. | also pray
that the Lord will prepare her so that one day
we can become sisters in the Lord!

When | started, | wrote the names of many
brothers and sisters, but every time | thanked
them for the help they gave me, they all said
in unison, give all the glory to God. It is also
through learning with every brother and sister,
that | learned to love our God with all my
heart, mind, and soul, and fo love our
neighbors as ourselves, and pray that God
will equip me so that | can also be God's
vessel, and pass on God's love to my relatives
and people around me. For all things are
from Him, through Him, and in Him. May the
glory be to Him forever. Amen!
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Pan Xiaohua

| am from mainland China. | received an
education of atheism when | was a child, and
| learned about the theory of evolution and
materialism. Although | was scared of ghosts
in elementary school, which was influenced
by folklore and some movies and TV shows
related to ghosts, in general | didn't believe in
gods. My awareness of Christianity was all
about  biblical stories and negative
information such as the darkness of Medieval
churches, churches helping the colonists
invade China, the Boxer Movement, and so
on. There were no Christians in my family, nor
were anyone even related to Christians. Only
in the small town where | lived as a child,
there was a vacant house not far from my
home that was said to have been a Christian
church, but it looked no different from other
houses on the street. Knowing that the house
was a church, | felt a little awe-inspired every
time | passed by. Later, after | left the town to
work, there was a church right next to my
workplace. The appearance was also
ordinary, and the door was always closed, so
| never walked in. The church and Christianity
came across to me as mysterious, negative,
and irrelevant to my life.

Later, after | decided to immigrate to
Canada, | heard from some immigrated
friends that going fo church after immigrating
abroad is a good way to meet people,
rebuild social circles, and integrate into the
new environment as soon as possible. It was
only then that | began to have some specific
and personal feelings about the church and
Christianity, and | had a more positive view.
With this in mind, invited by my Christian
landlord, | went to the Grace Chinese Gospel
Church of North York (GCGCNY) fo
parficipate in the Sunday Worship on the
second Sunday after landing in Toronfo. Af
that time, | actually stepped into the Korean
church next door because it looked more

2021 Annual Report EE®RE



aBE B8 MANDARIN CONGREGATION TESTIMONIES

HNHENEEEH1RIES - SRMREFSX
PARGFITRY - Fe@fiss - BB ED - AER
MIERPILEETRE - SBEEHER - 5
—RUT7HE - T 7HS - SBTEERRK -
ZMEEl - WHEHE FERYVIRERE - B
AIMEEH - Hs - BEEENSWERROE
K7 - AEMNB2—HESEBBENEC—H
HIA -

EMNROHFMERABENLESERER - &E
- BIfE - £ - BHEHS - SIVNAR
= SHSWBTHEKBREALE - 8181t
AEEHW-EERAHXOE-LE7# - AAX
KAA—TBEENEREAZSHMREE T
x - mMBESHZE-—BERAT—MEREZR
& BAEESNASHEFENEMB RS
o) - BIEBLERER—F - BEZRZEE
EHZSMANRFNED - FAFEERE
PESURNROPRAELZEKZN—TPT7
o - BRARXNEHZIFTARSHREGE
IRA - BREMNRTRE/BMHTAMRKAFTER
BHEFLRENIMTS - SHEFEARBILE
MEBENRE - RARRRNSS - BHXFHF
RBULREBR EEME—PHNSIK - XirH
F—HIRMI0/VFEE 7 - AZEMEUHRAY
REKR  RE RN BT THR - RS
BRI - HHEEE TEIUHEA - RBJEER
BEIEABSHE RBEEEUANRELEZUNZE
REBEY  BREREXBCEHUNZE - BRH
HAZNMEEHESNRE - R SBERR
SEEDRZHALEFL - ARELELS
B - BERELERECHTHEFTHRELE -

91 | Page

dignified, like a church in my mind. When |
finally came into GCGCNY from the north
enfrance on the streetside, | felt that it was
not like a church at all. The group had
already started singing when we went in. At
that time, | thought that the song was nice,
with beautiful melody and catchy words, not
like those solemn and majestic hymns in film
and television shows. For the first time, |
listened to sermons and prayers, talked with
brothers and sisters, participated in Bible
study, and had real contact with the church.
The mystique about Christianity, the church,
and Christians quickly disappeared. | realized
they were a bunch of ordinary people just like
me.

Life after that was the normal process of any
skilled worker immigrants — submitting
resumes, looking for jobs, and going to work. |
went to church on Sundays, participated in a
cell group, became more and more familiar
with brothers and sisters in the church, and
gradually gained some understanding of
some basic doctrines of Christianity. Soon my
wife decided to believe in the Lord because
of an unfortunate family incident of a friend,
but | was always in an ambiguous state with
God, not refusing to participate in church
worship or other activities, but also refusing to
take the final step. Participating in worship
and church activities was a way for me to
regularly connect with the friends | met at
church. Although my wife had a lot of service
and time committed to the church, | never
felt that there was anything missing or that |
needed to step out and make changes. |
was actively helping in church whenever
needed, but it didn't make me seek further
spiritually. In a blink of an eye, more than 10
years have passed. Seekers came to the
church one after another, made up their
minds, got baptized, some left the church,
and some continued to serve. People came
in and out, and some who joined the church
later thought | was a long-time Christian, and
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when the church held a Missionary
Conference, it reminded me that | was sfill
struggling with my decision to believe in the
Lord, and sometimes | was touched, but in
the end, | was bound by my own pride.

| thank God for choosing me, and | also thank
the pastors of the church and many brothers
and sisters, especially my wife for her
perseverance, support, and help over the
years, so that my hard and proud heart did
not sink or despair in love. God always has His
best preparations.

Since 2018, there have been problems in my
relationship with my wife. We had too many
conflicts in the upbringing of children, the
positioning of family roles, and
communicatfion with each other, and we
had not properly dealt with them in tfime,
which worsened the problems. On a Saturday
morning in the fall of 2019, when my wife and
| were discussing these issues at home, there
was an unprecedented sense of
unpredictability and fear about the future of
our relatfionship, and a sense of helplessness
and guilt with the fact of conflicts, |
completely surrendered to God and bowed
my head to confess my sins. At that moment,
| readlized that only God could give me
support, and only God could restore our
broken relationship in our family. My wife led
me to pray a prayer of resolution. God's
salvation is such a wonderful thing. When you
are completely unprepared, He has already
prepared everything for you.

For a long period of time after this, | felt that
there was not much difference in church life
or personal spiritual growth. | was still
parficipating in worships, cell group
gatherings, and Bible studies. However, God
has His plan, and the work He will do is not
something we can predict. In the following
period, | participated in two Sunday School
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courses, A Brief Overview of the Bible, hosted
by Mrs. Dorcas Siu, and followed by Paul's
Epistles, instructed by Pastor Siu. One studied
the structure of the Bible from a macro
perspective, the other was to study Paul’s
theological thoughts by using the Seven
Harmony's Bible Study method. These overall
and detailed studies allowed me to study the
New Testament with some basic theological
views and dig deeper in principles. Although
in the process of learning, there were sfill
many things that | did not understand, this did
not affect the work of the Holy Spirit in me.
Through these two Sunday School courses,
my personal spiritual life was brought back on
the right track, so that | could seriously think
about God's words and listen fo God's
teachings.

The COVID-19 pandemic that started in early
2020 changed a lot of things. Things we used
to take for granted suddenly became out of
reach. There were many places we can no
longer go, many things we can no longer do,
many people we can no longer see. We had
never thought it would happen. The
relationship among friends was forced to be
distanced, but it wonderfully brought the
relationship between our community and
neighbours closer. Because of the pandemic,
everyone spent a lot of fime at home, and
everyone was thinking of ways to make good
use of this time during lockdown. Wechat
groups of various interests and hobbies were
created by neighbours. Through these
groups, frequent communication in the virtual
world naturally turned info more in-person
contact and interaction in the real world. As |
had more conftact with my neighbors, |
gradually developed the idea of evangelism
in my heart. God's provision is so wonderful. In
May of this year, when | was deciding on the
next Sunday School course, | learnt that Mrs.
Siu was going fo start a Sunday school course
about Evangelism. | heard from Mrs. Vivian
Ren about the book "I Once Was Lost”
recommended by Mrs. Siu and Mrs. Siu was
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planning to use this book as the basis of the
course. | wanted fo learn some theoretical
knowledge about Evangelism, so | signed up
for Mrs. Siu's Sunday school course. At about
the same time, Pastor Eva started the
preparations for the Positive Discipline
outreach program, which | knew many of my
neighbours had the needs as well as myself, so
| recommended them fto parficipate, and
naturally, | agreed to be the group leader of
the Positive Discipline Course. These two
courses are so beautifully connected. First, |
learned about Evangelism from the Sunday
school Evangelism course, and it allowed me
to apply it on the Positive Discipline course in
inviting neighbours. Later in leading the group
in the Positive Discipline course, | received
preparation for leading a group in the Alpha
Course. The Alpha Course that started last
week made me experience God's leading
and God's preparation more truly.

In my family life, | also slowly began to learn to
let God be the lead of our family. When
dealing with the relationship with my wife and
kids, | asked God for guidance, obeyed the
teachings of the Bible, and learned how to
pray together as husband and wife and often
with children. Although there are still many
setbacks and conflicts in this process, the
presence of God has always given us the
confidence and courage to face these
difficulties and hope for the future. We have
also fruly experienced the peace and joy that
God brings in our family.

| have been justified through faith, as God
used His love to soften my hard heart, cast
away my pride, and bowed my head to
confess and repent before Him. God allowed
me to experience His wonderful guidance and
preparation, and let me witness His power.
Trust God, look up to God, experience God,
be with God, and ask God to continue to
protect and lead me on the road ahead, to
be a blessing to my family, my friends, and our
community. Amenl!
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Angela Wang

Brothers and sisters, peace in the Lord.

On Thanksgiving 2017, | gave a testimony
fited "Mold of Life". It was about my
experience of returning to the workplace
after four years from being laid off by AMD in
2013. This experience helped me a lot to
know God and strengthened my faith.
Quoting from that testimony: “Looking back
on the past four and a half years, losing a job,
starting a business, and looking for a job, |
have experienced a lot of God'’s grace, and |
deeply realized that my life is like the clay in
the hands of a potfter, being ground and
shaped. For most, | saw that ‘all things work
fogether for the good of those who love
God".

The testimony that | want fo talk about today
is the second part of the "Mold of Life",
sharing my career experience in the past
three and a half years and the wonderful
deeds God has done for me.

After | became a full-time employee of
Scotiabank in November 2017, | had a very
happy first year. It was a very dynamic
department, with a great team atmosphere,
and the projects | was doing were also what |
liked. In a work culture that encouraged
continuous learning, | enrolled in an EMBA
program. | thought | would happily retire in
this position, but unfortunately, the good
times didn't last long. Since the top
management changed and the strategy was
changed, the atmosphere in the entire
department went from bad to worse. After
praying and enduring for nearly a year, | felt
unbearable, so | resigned in October 2019
and took a contractor position in a tech
company, thinking it would give me more
freedom.
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After more than a year of quiet time at the
tech company, just before the confract
renewal at the end of last year, a start-up
company approached me and invited me to
join their team. Because | had never worked
for a start-up, | was quite impressed by that
offer, so | agreed to join them after the New
Year. Unexpectedly, after working there for
two months, it turned out quite different from
what | expected. Having consulted and
prayed with my family, | resigned with a three
-week notice, and resumed my job searching
journey in mid-March.

In retrospect, it was quite a hassle, but thank-
fully, God was really merciful and gracious to
me, and soon | got offers from two
companies. After prayer and confirmation, |
chose to return to AMD.

God's Wonderful Deeds
(1) Reconciliation with God

In the last two months, | have reflected a lot
in prayer. | recalled that | was baptized ten
years ago because at the time | was suffering
a setback at the workplace due to my pride.
After believing in the Lord, although my life
has somewhat changed, my old self was very
stubborn, just like what Paul mentioned in
Romans, "For | have the desire to do what is
good, but | cannot carry it out." | thought |
had already completed the lessons that God
wanted me to learn a few years ago, but the
reality was that once | encountered any
critical events, my pride and the nature of
loving the world would be immediately
exposed.

So, | confessed my sins to God and resolved
to repent, and God enlightened me, letting
me see that my sinful nature needed to rely
on the Lord every day to be protected by
grace. Once a proud heart emerges, God
blocks the pride. God reminded me, “‘Not by
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might nor by power, but by my Spirit,” says the
Lord Almighty.”

| prayed to God that He would lead me to a
job that would suit Him so that | could
balance family, work, and service. | was
willing to completely let go of my opinions
and believe that His ways are higher than my
ways, and His thoughts are higher than my
thoughts, and may God's will be done.

Although | was worried, concerned, and
confused at the beginning, after every
prayer, | felt peace in my heart, and God
continued to strengthen my faith and frust in
Him through various people and things. This
experience made me readlize once again
that "you are my Lord; apart from you | have
no good thing." Reconciliation with God and
glorifying God and benefiting others are the
top priorities.

(2) Reconciliation with Myself

My decision to leave the start-up was the day
before my birthday. It occurred to me that
day that | had been away from AMD for
eight years, and | prayed and reflected a lot.
After praying with God, | realized that my
personality doesn't seem to care about
negative things, but it really does, it's just a
long reflex arc. For example, | did care about
being laid off eight years ago, so that when |
was looking for a job in the first four years, |
held on to the idea of "a good horse doesn't
look back” and resolutely did not consider
returning to AMD. But the amazing thing was
that in the past four years, this care and
determination has been slowly healed and
digested in God's love, and | have gradually
stopped holding on fo my own opinions.
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When | started looking for a new job
opportunity this time, one day AMD's HR
came to me on LinkedIin and asked me "Will
you consider going back to AMD", | had such
a warm feeling as if God was asking me, after
SO many years, can you reconcile with
yourselfg After praying, | felt it was time to let
go of my opinions, so | gladly accepted the
interview opportunity, and they quickly gave
me an offer that exceeded my expectations.
At the same fime, | also received an offer
from Scotiabank. After earnest prayer and
multiple confirmations, | decided to return to
AMD, and thus | finally reconciled with myself.

(3) Reconciliation with people

Colossians  3:12-13  “Therefore, as God's
chosen people, holy and dearly loved, clothe
yourselves with compassion, kindness,
humility, gentleness, and patience. Bear with
each other and forgive one another if any of
you has a grievance against someone.
Forgive as the Lord forgave you.”

In terms of reconciling with people, there are
a few things | am very grateful:

1. When | decided to leave that start-up, |
was not happy with the company. But |
was grateful and hoped that | could help
the company, so | gave my colleagues
some much-needed fraining in the final
two weeks. Because of this, my boss and
colleagues had a good impression on me,
and my career experience in a start-up
company has drawn a happy ending.

2. AMD asked my former manager there to
do an internal reference check before
making the offer. He reached out to me
on Linkedin and told me that he gave me
a good review and wished me success in
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my new role. This incident instantly relieved
me from the concern | had been holding
from the previous layoff, and | was full of
gratitude.

3. Although | declined Scoftiabank's offer, |
knew that their project needed to be
launched urgently. In order to minimize the
impact of me not accepting the offer, |
recommended a candidate that is a good
fit to them. After | connected them, their
conversation went really well, and they
also thanked me for being considerate
and thinking about them.

Matthew 5:16 “In the same way, let your light
shine before others, that they may see your
good deeds and glorify your Father in
heaven”.

God wants us to be light and salt, so | always
open up my faith to my colleagues when |
get a chance in the workplace. On the one
hand, | can urge myself to be reminded to
act commensurately with the grace of my
calling. On the other hand, when | rely on the
grace and mercy of the Lord to do the right
things in the workplace, | can be a good
withess to God.

Looking back on the experience of being
reconciled with God, reconciled with myself,
and reconciled with others, | am full of
gratitude, and | thank God for loving me and
molding my life so much over the past month.
Special thanks to my family and brothers and
sisters for praying for me during this time. May
all praise and glory be to our Lord Jesus
Christ, King of Kings and Lord of Lords!
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KLS 5255 T CHILDREN’S MINISTRY

& {0 {ikZE(H3E Pastor Eva Poon

The Joy to Co-Journeying - Ps. 37:34a

On August 10th, 2021, | sent a message to
Rev. Fanco, asking for his prayer because |
was feeling overwhelmed by four challenges.
| was to plan and host a 2-day event about
Purity for 8 families with preteens, yet had
never aftended one; | was to facilitate
Positive Discipline Parenting Training for the
first fime in Mandarin, yet | do not speak it
well; and | hoped to increase "online
connectivity” because many experts said
that’s vital for ministry growth, yet | am terrible
with technology! To top it off, there were
always people asking when KLS would
reopen in-person meetings, yet | had no
answer for that question as the Covid case
numbers continued to fluctuate.

| thank my wonderful Lord for this wonderful
Senior Pastor. Rev. Fanco promptly, but
gently pointed out my problem: | expected
myself to “do all the new things and plan for
the future all by vyourself”! He then
encouraged me and guided me to start
co-journeying, and | testify that following his
suggestions brought me much peace and joy
through the rest of 2021!

Indeed, | am not alone in the KLS ministry!
Throughout 2021, | was so thankful for all the
feams | co-journeyed with. | praise the Lord
for the awesome KLS Core Team as well as
each KLS helper. With their faithful leadership
and participation, we continued fo serve
children from preschool to Gr. 6 every Sunday
via online classrooms, and an average of 25-
30 children worshipped together every week,
being nourished spiritually.

Children were also motivated to reflect on
the true meanings of Easter and Christmas
through events the team led, including an
Easter Eggs Design Contest, online Joint
Good Friday Worship, Christmas Gift-bags,
and online Joint Christmas Worship.
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KLS 5255 T CHILDREN’S MINISTRY

& {0 {ikZE(H3E Pastor Eva Poon

Besides, God had prepared a team of 12
passionate leaders to help facilitate the
Mandarin Positive Discipline Workshops.

This way, | could use my limited Mandarin on
delivering the lesson materials, while the
group leaders welcomed and connected
with the new comers. Teacher Vivian Ren
shared, "Through class discussions, after-class
care, some non-believers expressed curiosity
regarding our faith, and a few of them
started attending the cell group Bible studies
in our church. The team feels that this ministry
not only helped parents and blessed families,
it is also great model for outreach for our
church”. Another team | learned much from
was the Pastoral Team. God taught me so
much via serving with each of our pastors.
Praise the Lord!

2021 was also a year where | co-journeyed
with KLS families. As a children’s pastor, |
always loved children, and was happy to
have spent 1.5 hours with children in
fellowship every Saturday. This year, our
theme was “The Great Commission”. | led
the children in studying and obeying the
teachings of Christ, and prayed for needs
around the world in missions and in
persecutions. | had also invited leaders from
each church ministry, so that the children can
learn about what the Lord was doing in our
church, and know that they can participate
by praying for these ministries. It brought me
much joy to hear the children pray together,
as well as when we played online games
together. What a blessing it was to
co-journey with the children God loves during
this pandemic, when there was so much
isolation! Also, since we were not meeting
the parents at church, we started sending
monthly newsletter to inform them of what
children are learning at online classrooms,
and hosted Parents’ Workshops at our
Summer Retreat to support parents in
embracing their role as Christian parents at
home. For the 2-day event about purity, |
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KLS 5255 T CHILDREN’S MINISTRY

& {0 {ikZE(H3E Pastor Eva Poon

learned to really rely on the Lord in prayer,
asking Him to prepare the parents, and to
lead us in hosting the event in His time. In
hindsight, to have this event later (March
2022) was perfect!

Of course, to co-journey with the Lord was
the most important lesson in 2021. | cannot
see the future, and there are many things | do
not know. Yet the Lord has perfect power,
perfect wisdom, and perfect lovel Even
though | thought of many possible ways to
increase “online connectivity” in the first half
of 2021, God did not send techy people to
KLS ministry. Rather, God sent many brothers
and sisters from all three congregations fo
help organize parenting workshops. Hence,
the Mandarin parenting workshops were
launched in September, and by the end of
2021, we were able to start inviting parents to
join the English and Cantonese workshops
which were ready to start in January of 2022.
From this experience, | saw how God saw the
need for support among parents within our
church as well as in our community, and led
us to fulfill this mission by moving the hearts of
His children. Now | have a better
understanding of what it means to co-journey
with the Lord: To humbly follow Him!

Looking back, | thank God for His grace in the
KLS ministry throughout 2021. | would
summarize this journey with David's words in
Psalm 37:34a, “Hope in the Lord and keep His
way”. We are so imperfect and weak, our
hope is truly in the Lord who provides, guides,
and fulfills His purpose through the work of His
Spirit.  Our responsibilitye To keep His way by
living out His word and His calling, and
humbly walk with Him and His people in unity,
one day aft a time. Praise the Lord for His
mercy on us!

Ministry Committee: Chair: Pastor Eva Poon,
Vice-Chair: Simon Tse, Secretary: Edwina Luu
Members: Felicity Chan and Linda Zhang.
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& {0 {ikZE(H3iE Pastor Eva Poon

ETE: IEBOUNREEE BIEFEHES - Core Group Members: Preschool group with
= V. Edwina Luu, Winnie Lam, Vera Ho. Junior

DEE s §E Sk — = ° ’ ’
NEHRBE - ZRRRREARRR group (G. 1-3) with Vivian Ren, Felicity Chan.
ZNAE: BRI RS ZISEE . EMIKIL - fNeSlor group (G. 4-6) with Stella Fok, Helen

Ill

O fREE - 1_ PGA-3)ME HEREASEIR -

BREREEY - SYI(GA-6)E EFME - BR

BE Curbside Pick-Up station at Church Entrance
for Easter Egg Design Contest prizes.

HAEAOMNBEEE Hﬁ(ﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁtt%xun)

Parent’s Workshop offered via Zoom during
the online Summer Refreat 2021.

2021 FEFEREA Zoom REMNREMHE -
-

- Where are you
at?

- Make a
commitment.

- Create an altar
of
rememberance.

Cake ingredients sent along with Christmas Giftbags to
encourage KLS families to celebrate
Jesus's birthday at home.

SRAERECRI RS mER -

s KLS REEREMEBIHRNER -
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Helen Wu

2021 was still a year full of challenge. The
pandemic continues; schools and most extra-
curricular activities were online until the fall.
KLS, our Children's Worship and Fellowship are
no exception. However, it is also within the
constraints that | can see more clearly how
God'’'s power and faithfulness make my child
grow. Among this, Pastor Poon and her team
played an important role in their leadership,
guidance, and consistent companionship.
Yes, "Who shall separate us from the love of
Christe Shall frouble or hardship?......" (Romans
8:35)

This year, we had adapted to the "New
Normal" of online gatherings. Every Saturday
and Sunday, my child was looking forward to
worship God and to have the fellowship
along with Pastor Eva, the teachers and his
dear fellow friends; he kept the meeting time
in his mind and signed info the meeting all by
himself. Sitting next door, | could hear him
laughing loudly, discussing actively and
sometfimes engaging cheerfully in online
games. When the meetings were over, he
walked out of the room, often with a satisfied
smile on his face.

Pastor Eva and the teachers spent a lot of
fime and took a great effort to prepare the
teaching materials; they had been learning
the new technologies, constantly trying to
teach the Bible and share God’s message to
children in a fun and interesting way. There
were young brothers and sisters from English
Congregation joining the team too, leading
the worship and play games with children.

Through these activities, they became the
dear elder brothers and sisters to my child.
The Church of Christ was no longer limited to
a certain place or building, but became a
spiritual family in the hearts of children. In a
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world full of restlessness, it was the temple
with God's presence, a place full of peace,
joy. and hope.

Pastor Eva also maintained close contact
with  parents through emails and social
platforms, so that parents were informed
about the topics our children were learning
every month. This way, | was able to work with
the pastoral staff as a feam nurturing my child
spirifually in our daily life.

Praise the Lord! Despite the ravages of the
pandemic, KLS activities were not limited to
just online. At Christmas, Pastor Eva and the
co-workers carefully selected and prepared
Christmas gifts for the children. When the
children went to the church along with their
parents to pick-up the presents, through the
brief greeting and talking with the teachers,
my child fruly felt the abundant love of God.
Sometime during the year, a small gift along
with the words of encouragement and
blessings sent out by teacher Corina also
brought surprises to my child, bringing him
much excitement.

Looking back on the year of 2021, my heart is
full of grafitude! May the Lord Himself
remember His good and faithful servants,
bless their work and make them a blessing to
the children!

Theo

| would like to start off this paragraph by
stating how | felt when we went online for KLS.
When we went online, | felt a bit distraught,
because that means Covid was getting really
bad. Also, we had to do everything online. |
prefer to go to church face-to-face instead
of online. However, once we got online and
got more used to it, | feel that it might be
easier than calming a bunch of kids in the
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classroom to just listen to you. The reason |
attend these meetings regularly is because
first, my parents tell me to, and second, it is
important to learn about the word of God, |
suppose. To the teachers (and Pastor Eva) |
just want to say thank you for teaching me for
these 6 years, since | came to Canada. |
hope that | can see you again when Covid
ends and we can come back, as | am going
to the Genesis program next year. Things that
| enjoy in KLS are: Bible verse, | like to use my
memory, as | have a good one, and | thank
God for giving me that, the games, | guess. It
is usually fun to take a break from all the
information. | am falking about both the
Sunday School games and the Fellowship
games. Thank you for teaching me, and |
hope to see you next year!
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@2 E#H = Deacon Wilfred Ho

2021 FEEFE -1 H29HEZ 31 H & Mission Conference 2021, Jan 29-31. Theme
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was “Witness: One Heart + One Mind"” (The
Mission of Blessing People)

Online Mission:

p—

Brazil - Cell Leaders’ Training (3 months)

2. Brazil - Mandarin EV Class for local Brazili-
an (6 months)

Mexico - Cell Group support (3 months)
Mexico - Children Program (3 months)
Mexico - Mentoring & Discipleship Training
for local Missionaries (12 months)

oo
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FRIZE N E Deaconess Dora Yeung
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In 2021, COVID is still raging. There are many
restrictions on human interaction. Social
services and care have failed to actualize
many physical services. Even so, the care of
the brothers and sisters in the church for the
community has not declined, so that even
when we were under the restrictions, they still
responded positively when proposing plans
that addressed community needs.

This year, Pauline and David, the coordinators
of Grace Food Bank, who have been serving
faithfully for 8 years, decided to take a break.
Thank the Lord for their hard work in the past,
and we ask the Lord to remember their
services. We made some changes at Grace
Food Bank, including staffing, service
arrangements, data processing, and room
usage.

A brief report is as follows:

1. Staffing: Thank the Lord, despite the

epidemic, many community members
and church brothers and sisters are willing
fo join the ranks of volunteers. In 2021, a
total of 12 new recruits were added, and 6
former volunteers rejoined the team.

Additionally, due to the current epidemic
sifuation, the current food bank members
cannot chat with the volunteers when they
go to the church to pick up food as in the
past. Therefore, we have organized volunteers
to call them regularly and to bring their needs
back to the team. Pray for them.
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COMMUNITY SERVICE AND CONCERN REPORT
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2. Service Arrangements: When the
epidemic slowed down, we were able to
meet with individual members and
re-evaluated their eligibility for service. In
addition, we encouraged our service
recipients to come to the church to pick
up food, so that we had the opportunity to
meet them. However, we still delivered
food to the elderly or the sick.

3. Data processing: We digitized the
information of the food bank, including:
personal data of the service recipients,
food choices, contact information of the
service recipients, shopping data, and vol-
unteer data.

4. Room usage: We converted the old food
bank office to an extra storage room for
food, so that we can increase the food
storage capacity and serve more people.

Thank you, Lord, this year we also received
$7.500 from Second Harvests to purchase
food, storage racks, air purifiers and personal
protective equipment.

In addition, we continued to respond to World
Vision's 6K Walk/Run fundraiser for clean water
in poor countries. Although we were not able
to walk together for this meaningful event as in
the past, we still did it in small groups with a
fotal of 54 people participating, and raised
$7.880.

Lastly, we also encouraged our brothers and
sisters to care for those in need from far away.
This year, we encouraged our brothers and
sisters to provide the poor schoolchildren in
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the Philippines with the things they need to go
to school through Exireme Reponses.

Lord, let us remember that "it is more blessed
to give than to receive", and to be willing to
respond to the needs of the community with
love and practical action, no matter what the
constraints are.
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MEMBERSHIP & CHURCH COMMUNITY

& {E# 3 Deacon Howard Chin

Covid19 jtiﬁ't”_E 2021 4L - B
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The Covid19 Pandemic continued in 2021 and
refreats were sent online only. In person
hybrid, worship did not resume fill October
2021. Fortunately, some cell groups were able
to hold some in person summer meetfings in
parks outdoors. A membership discipline
incident was enforced. Membership meeting
online had record attendances.

BEETEIATH ((EARIIMENEE): RIR Maggie Jing Yu, i Richard Li,
Mandarin Membership Transfer #H &7 Fanny Xie, 13525 Sophia Liy,
on March 7th by Rev. Ren: sxe jonn Lin, #& Jenna Lin

ﬂlll’

H2E6H26H (EWETEIE, 49.5); THE Samuel Wong - E[@IEE Irene

Cantonese Baptism on June 26th  Wong
by Pastor Lee (on zoom):

BIEEZRE7A 1 HEARIIKENEIR): #5%5 Gou Ping Ping
Mandarin Baptism on July 11th by Rev. Ren:
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BESZ2E7A3TH(FIN: ¥I5E Andrea Cheng, SE4ZL Lily Fan, =518
Cantonese Baptism on July 31st (outside): | Christina Lee, 58 Cindy Lee, £+ Gabriel Lok,
#HEE Wil Tse, =E0EIZ Ping Wong, =% John
Wong, 27RE Yann Wu

HIEEREBEE7H18H - 8821H: English Baptism & Membership Transfer:
on July 18 and August 21st:

=18 Baptism (7818H July 18): Andrea Leung
/=12 Baptism (8H21H August 21): Daniel Chen, Denise Wong
#E Membership Transfer: Terence Ma

s EEEEZEREE - 61st Cantonese Baptism & Membership Transfer:

212 Baptism (128 18H Dec 18): LiEE) Jiang Pei Xun
=12 Baptism (12819H Dec 19): EI&E Wun Heung Chim, #%x%8 Kuen Jeannie Chi

#E Membership Transfer: 73/)\8 Siu Cee Fong, Z#IZE Alice Yuen Man Kwok

242 Baptism (12821 HDec 21): #3&k& 3= Wan Bee Tiu, Choi
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B2 REE128 128 (FFAIIETEIE); Mandarin Baptism and Membership Transfer on
Dec 12th by Rev. Ren:

/=18 Baptism: &/\ZE Xiaohua Pan, Z2575 Ronghua Li, ##k Lin-
lin Jiang
#E Membership Transfer: #2288 Julia Pi-Hsia Yu, 2I58 Qiang Liu, &%

Shuyang Wang, E# Ying Gan

BB 2826H: Sandra Huang, Serene Chiu, Roxanne Cheung,

Evangel Yip
English Baptism on December 26th:
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21 %= Deacon Michael Luu

Highlights:

Last year has been a challenging year as our
church closed physically, then re-opened
mid-year, but closed again due to the record
peak COVID-19 infections from the new
Omicron variant. Changes to government
rules have made it very difficult fo navigate
and plan for the church. God was good and
continued fo provide. We sfill managed to
use our facility for small gatherings, online
and in-person worships, baptism celebrations
and small group functions. The church was
still able to continue functioning, and our
projects were able to be completed in this
unpredictable tfime.

Major projects completed last year were:

1. Upgraded all existing cameras to 2K HD
digital cameras, added cameras at the
food bank intake area for safety.

2. Completed replacing all hand railings
outside the church and added awning
and side panel enclosure at the front
office enfrance.

3. Fixed damage piping and reconnected
our main sprinkler system for usage, and
registered with confractor to open and
close system each year.

4. Purchased over ten additional portable
HEPA air purifiers for church reopening.

In 2022 some major projects we are working
on and are sourcing confractors to get
quotes are:

1. Renovate mulli-purpose gym. Replace
flooring, paint, and add Plexiglas wall
panels.

2. Replace and fix front door on Tempo Ave
and side door near electrical vault.

3. Register with City of Toronto to install
digital signage/message board at the
entrance driveway.
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12 8RR & BUILDLING

4. Hire an engineering firm to provide design
recommendations for the entrance way
used by GCS near the electric vault and
ways fo divert water away from the
entrance to Sanctuary A.

Thank you again for all who has helped
support the building department and
contributed to building God's kihgdom in this
time of the pandemic. Please pray for
confinue wisdom, protection and safety.
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IT/AV

Z ;83X =E Deacon Firman Lee

2021 was a challenging year to take over the
IT/AV Ministry responsibilities, as there was no
opportunity for a full knowledge transfer
amidst the lockdown and virtual-only worship

scenario. However, God as always, was
gracious, providing committed and
knowledgeable brothers from each of the
congregations, providing the support and
teamwork required to keep everything
working smoothly. For this | will always be
thankful and grateful. Praise God!

Although the virtual worship that was
conducted for about a year and a half was
largely pre-recorded, streamed online
through YouTube, then onto our Online
church platform, the hybrid model presented
a much larger challenge, particularly for the
Cantonese congregation. English and
Mandarin congregations were mostly using
the same equipment as pre-COVID and were
familiar with their functions. With the addition
of some online-specific software and
equipment, Cantonese service needed
essentially a completely new set-up to
conduct service in the big gym. The
equipment was made up of back-up/older
equipment, and it was supplemented with
some new ones. Furthermore, each
subsequent worship service revealed
additional equipment glitches/malfunctions
that mainly occurred during the actual
service, and never revealed itself during the
testing or preparation time. However,
fortunately, with the tremendous help and
contribution from the AV tfeam (made up of
Darius Fok, Kevin Yeung, Bill Cheng, and
Martin Ma), supported by Winston Siu and
Kayson Ko from the Cantfonese
Congregation, and Wilson Kwong, Kevin Ho,
and Mike Luu from English congregation,
most of these glitches have already been
addressed. Major new purchases have
included: a new computer and monitor for
recording and broadcasting videos online, a
new video camera and lens, and two new
short-throw LCD projectors to replace the
previous ones which had problems
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IT/AV

accepting the new digital signals from the
new set-up. Praise God that we have been
able to maintain continuity for Cantonese
worship despite the challenges presented! In
the meantime, we are actively looking for
more volunteers interested in serving in the
AV (and IT) ministries, beyond just our current
volunteers, and for the time just brothers from
the church. We welcome any sisters
interested in learning more about AV or IT!

From an IT perspective, major work will be
forthcoming later this year, once we are able
fo install and receive an optic fibre internet
connection, pending the identification of a
nearby high-rise building that can offer an
unobstructed signal path to our church. Two
previous aftempts for an installation were
delayed due to obstructions to the signal’s
line-of-sight path to our church. Once we
know that the antenna and new internet
source can be installed and deployed, we
will begin work on upgrading the church’s
server infrastructure and wireless access
points. The church’s current internet service
has limited bandwidth that cannot be further
upgraded due to the church’s location in an
industrial neighbourhood where Rogers and
Bell will not invest for upgrades; therefore, a
new, larger bandwidth internet service s
required, especially once a full reopening
occurs, where internet access will be required
for multiple bible study, cell and other
gathering groups, on fop of the church
office’s administrative needs. We had a
minor server crash last year, due fo an
overheated network router, that took a few
days to diagnose, but then was quickly
resolved. On the website front, we are
working on a future upgrade of all the sites for
the three congregations — stay tuned for
developments. Finally, we have also started
a new English video ministry that will be falling
under the AV department, another
development to stay tuned for.

In closing, thank you to Queenie for her
contfinual support to provide access to the
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church on-demand, and for the patience of
the pastoral staff amidst all our AV and IT
challenges. | am quite confident that 2022
will bring a much more stable year for AV
and IT, and a road to a smoother transition to
a full church reopening scenario. Please
continue to pray for our church in this regard,
and continue to praise God for his blessings
and provision!
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N ZE#RE SECRETARY’S REPORT

BIE#=E Deacon Edwin Ge

In 2021, Covid-19 pandemic still affected
households, businesses, as well as faith-based
organizations across the country. On the
other hand, vaccines are highly effective
and greatly reduced the risk of severe illness,
hospitalization, and deaths from COVID-19.
Since October 2021, our church transitioned
to a hybrid (online and in-person) worship
model. We appreciate our pastoral and
administrative staff's faithful and continuous
services during the pandemic. We dalso
appreciate the worship teams’ (IT/AV, Usher,
KLS, etc.) hard work. Foodbank also continu-
ously provided food to those in need in the
community, be the salt of the earth, the light
of the world. “Put your hope in God, for | will
yet praise him, my Savior and my
God." (Psalm 43:5b)

FHZEFE:EB 5 Sunday Worship Speakers

Ei:E & Mandarin

EBIRE T Yue Gong
Dr. Jonathan Lim
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A 4460 Rev. Fanco Chan
ZEEAAT Rev. David Lee
EEMHWEAN Rev. Chi-Hung Siu
EDEAT Rev. Johnny Wong
ZHPE E3E Pastor Michelle Kim
E4BEHET Rev. Ted Tham

& F4ET Rev. CY Yan

E4BEIHEN Rev. Ted Tham
ZHPE 5 Rev. Ted Tham
BR{=1738 7 Brother Santos Chan
EABEHEN Rev. Fred Tham

E {84 Dr. Donna Dong

PR IR EE BT Rev. John Chan

EARIIHEM Rev. Daniel Ren
SREFEFHEAN Rev. Danny Cheung
BT EEEE Pastor Eva Poon
213825 ¢ Brother Moses Liu
EARE % Tianshu Gao

BRSO ZEHEM Rev. EAwin Su

SREEFHAT Rev. Danny Cheung
B kEEEE Pastor Eva Poon
EERIRHED Rev. George Yip
a4 5% 52 5T Brother Rodney Ho
EARIIHEN Rev. Dali Ren
ZFEEWEAN Rev. Keith Lee

B EIER 42T Rev. Fanco Chan
SREFEFMAD Rev. Danny Cheung
FEEAAT Rev. David Lee

B E AN Rev. Chi-Hung Siu
Michael Messenger 5£4

Rev. Jay Calder

EEMHWEAT Rev. Chi-Hung Siu
BREIE 44T Rev. Fanco Chan
ZREF{EE Pastor Jianping Gu
PR EX 75 446 Rev. Qi-Fang Chen
ZFERYCHEM Pastor Dongguang Li
HREZEEL Rev. William Tsui
SIEB AT Rev. Lai Szeto
=HEEWEN Rev. Joseph Wong
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N E RS SECRETARY’S REPORT

B & HE Membership News

S FE A Bl Worship Attendance

&> Minimum &% Maximum F19 Average
BEZ Cantonese 38 56 47
TAZEE English 49 64 54
E3&= Mandarin 32 43 38
52Z Children (KLS) 24 31 27

Note: worship attendance is based on in-person numbers of Oct, Nov, Dec 2021; KLS attendance is based
on KLS online zoom attendances of 2021.

{55 = Prayer Meeting (BB & A £ Weekly Attendance)
15 Average
HEEE Cantonese BH EFFBE % E Sun Moming & Tues Night 45
HEEE English BH - ~3B= - @I Sun, Mon, Wed, Thurs 53
El:EE Mandarin E—Z=#7X Mon to Sat 22

i2¥& / T Baptism / Membership Transfer

=22 Baptism EHE
Membership Transfer

EiZ% Cantonese 4 10
HEEE English 16 2
Bl& = Mandarin 7 1

Note: for more information about Baptism and Membership, see “Membership and Community” report.
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N E RS SECRETARY’S REPORT

E R HE Membership News

E$2 Weddings

BLEE Cantonese N/C
EEEE English Andrew Leung & Miga Kim (July 24)
Simeon Wong & Jessica Leung (Sept 11)
Phil Chin & Shervonne Kung (Nov 6)

El:E% Mandarin N/C

H 4225 Newborns
%2 Girl £ 48 Boy

E:ET Cantonese Ada Leung & Jason Lee:
Joy Lee (Aug)

Melanie & Kevin Kwan:
Rachel Kwan (Nov)

AZEE English Nicholas & Mary Chang: Arron & Ying Mok:
Jubilee Chang (Feb 1) Zechariah (Sept 2)

Stan & Grace Ly

BlE = Mandarin n/a n/a

Note: no child dedications.

Zx 1t Deceased

EiE® Cantonese HEEBEHK Sister Tse Chan Hang Gyun, EZ itk Sister Wong Hau Yu,
s YR Sister Wan To Lin, I & EE i yh K Sister Ho Dai Bik Yu.

5B E English N/a

EI:EE Mandarin KBAZE(Jenny)hkRIEE Sister Jenny Ou-Yang's mother, BRI IRAIR 3= 7E
gt Sister Chen Wei's father in Shanghai, EIESES R RXZ STAETE
Z %A Sister Wang Zhiping'’s husband Mr. Zhao in Toronto, IMEEIHIE
R EKRBOESHEZEE Sister Sun Zhiwei's mother Zhang Jingxin in
Toronto.
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TR

SERMBTNESTTHENZT RSO

EXEEE
1H27H
4H28H
6H13H-FRfS
7H28H
10H28H

ERAE :

5H30H
11H27H

BEN—FE2REN—F - BEAHASAE
HREINZRZEIBARTT - HPEEHAH
BE ¢ - BLEHBZARMEE - #IAFM
FOATARING A FHRMNAE -
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SECRETARY’S REPORT

Board Directors and

Pastors,
Congregations, it has been my pleasure and
blessing to serve on the Board of our Church.

Dear

We have had the following board meetings
and membership meetings this year:

Board Meetings:

January 27, 2021

April 28, 2021

June 13, 2021 - Dedication
July 28, 2021

October 28, 2021

Membership Meetings:
May 30, 2021
November 27, 2021

The past year has been a difficult one.
Everyone has had to deal with the
unexpected arrival of a world-wide
pandemic. Lifestyles and schedules have had
to be changed, but God is always with us. He
has supported our church in ways we could
never have expected.
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HEgREE Jesus Christ

}

& & Membership

|

&% Council of Elders

FE® Executive Board

TEIZEtE3RE ORGANIZATION CHART

E=® Execufive Board

FFE: BYAE
B EhEm
s B
B3 A8
B35 BRRES
BIETES: S
BIETES: (=R
2=

Chair: Hoytson Wong
Vice Chair: TK. Wong
Secretary: Edwin Ge

Assistant Secretary: Richard Liang

Treasurer: Conrad Chan

Assistant Treasurer: Simon Tse

Assistant Treasurer: Leo Lou

Michael Luu

v

Joint Ministry

BEE

& Stewardship Committee

FHE T
Pastoral Team

_U
=

=}
™
0
=

EES 1w
Cantonese Ministry
Committee

HEB1E
English Ministry

Committee

STES
Mandarin Ministry
Committee

KLS REB L=
Children Ministry
Committee

B1%% Finance |+—
125 Building | +«—
R IT -~
Z=& Missions |
& ARFS R R R
L
Community Service
& Concern
HELTARER
Church Community | «+—

& Membership
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HaESE
Pulpit Committes
HEELEE Hoytson Wong
EEIFIE TK Wong
S Simon Tse
FHHRichard Liang
BN Rev. Chan

e 2l B A BT
Rev. Fanco Chan
e el ]
Rev. Danny Cheung
FiEWEE
Pastor Michelle Kim
FEEE
Rev. David Lee
EiofkEaiE
Pastor Eva Poon
E A YA
Rev. Daniel Ren
i SEF AR

Rev. Ted Tham



# 85 Board of Director,

* 4K Team lead

£ T = MINISTRY COMMITTEE

(#135:1X/%F Deacon: Term/Year)

(Board of Director: 1 year term, starts from June. Elder: 3 years term, starts from June. Deacon: 2 years
term, starts from April.) (ES—F—&, NAHKB. RE=F—&, ~EHKB. ASEME—E, NWBR®R.)

Ministry Committee 31T & | Cantonese B58 | English %52 Mandarin @z | Children 22
Chair Rev. Chan Rev. Tham Rev. Ren Pastor Poon
i g BB tE4ED EHE
Vice Chair TK Wong Hoytson Wong Richard Liang Simon Tse
BEEE # EIEIR(4N) # ol iE(4/1) # JAED) # BEHEFS(A/1)
Secratary Firman Lee - Richard Liang ===

XE FB/LON) RAR2/2)

Warship Darius Fok Xiao Wang

==F & EEWE2N) + &(1/1)

Discipleship & Equipping
PAEll R

{(Non-deacon-rep.)

Ginry Zhou

Carol Tse
FHEER(A

Rict ard Lian g
.-'\"?‘ [2.'

[Z5pedt
Evangelism Winnie Ma Carol Tse linhua Yan
BES BiRaBEeN) HEmEA4/) B2
QOutreach Alfred Tam - -
SN EEH(/)
Prayer Judy Hum ciacn it
m=s AL dll‘“»’"*
Caring & Visitation Liza Ki - -
8 8RR B A B ERE(2/2)
Caring - === Shawn Dan
4 R BEKL(1/2)
Youth Ministry = Shermeen Law =
=SEET =IXE(4/7)
Farnily Ministry == Kevin Ho s
EEET ot B(2/2)
Mew Comer Follow-up == -== Richard Liang
FARIRE RAE(2/2)
Warship Team == === Vivian Li
aEE | 4 ZFEB(2/1)
Children Simoan T':.E' Edwina Luu (Non-deacon-reo.)
R = S5 (4/ FI=TE8(4/1) Gibuian Ben
Felicity fun e = &
IR E(3/) R
Helen Wu
=BHE
Rev. Lee Pastor Kim
FHED FEHE
Rev. Cheung
o B

Preschool

Junior

{EHE

Senior

i

Edwina Luu
r.J:-J E.|:|=|!-'x|-4ﬂ-|-ll
Felicity Chan
EEER BRI 3

iNon-deacon-rep)

Wivian Ren
Py
Helen Wu
RiEHE
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£ T = MINISTRY COMMITTEE

(#135:1X/%F Deacon: Term/Year)

# &5 Board of Director, * #iE& Team lead

Joint Ministry & Stewardship Committee

Cantonese B8

English %258

Mandarin B

BEEE

Finance Conrad Chan Hoytson Wong | ivor-oeacon-rap |
¥ g Non-deacon-rep.)

B7 -Z ] =& '*-’I-'.{ el = e r_:'_,_l.'_J_ T '-—.-.

s : LL'{:T_Z 4/ o fE(4/1) Angela Wang 135

Y& EEELE (/1)

Building Jackson Wong Michael Luu Simon Song

LS =2P(1/1) Y BIEFREAN) SR=(1)

T Firrman Lee David Feng

R v F/IO/ BEEN

Mission Wilfred Ho (Non-deacon-rep.) Tianshu Gao

=4 * () A Er (/1)

Santos Chan

Community Service & Concern
1115 5 5 RR 1%

Dora Yeung
© RIBEE/2)

(Non-deacon-rep )
Aaron Mok

Simon Song
()

Church Community & Membership
HEEERER

Kayson Ko
B4/

Edwin Ge
=3E3M

JMSC Chair BE®EE

Rev. Chan [&27ED

JMSC Vice Chair EE&EIEE

# Edwin Ge BIE(

31)

Secretary &

Firman Lea FEH L

(1)
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Jan 1, Fri

Jan 29-31, Fri-Sun
Feb 12, Fri
Feb 15, Mon
Mar 7, Sun
Mar 14, Sun
Apr 2, Fri
Apr 4, Sun
Apr 11, Sun
May

May 9, Sun
May 16, Sun
May 24, Mon
May 30, Sun
May 30, Sun
Jun 6, Sun
Jun 13, Sun
Jun 20, Sun
Jun 20, Sun
Jul1, Thu

Jul 9-11, Fri-Sun
Jul 18, Sun
Aug 2, Mon
Aug 29, Sun
Sep 6, Mon
Sep 12, Sun
Sep 18-19, Sat-Sun
Sep 26, Sun
Oct

Oct 11, Mon
Oct 24, Sun
Oct 31, Sun
Oct 31, Sun
Nov 28, Sun
Dec 5, Sun
Dec 12, Sun
Dec 25, Sat
Dec 28, Tue

ZE{TERE CHURCH CALENDAR

New Year's Day #eF
Mission Conference =@ &
Chinese New Year &R F

Family Day ZkzH

Congregational Membership Meeting (Flect Deacon) ##%
Poverty Sunday k& ¥FH

Good Friday =

Easter Sunday &

Ministry Committee Dedlication #|F %7
Leader Appreciation Month E/KE /5
Mother's Day &35 &

Mission Sunday Z=EBEXH

Victoria Day #2#as H

31stAnniversary Joint Worshipit—BF B SR
Membership Meeting@ & X'& (Elect Elder & Director)
Baptism =218 (CanZ, Man[)

Baptism =8 (Eng£)

Father's Day X #R&n

Board Dedication ZZF 2 FftiE

Canada Day BEH

Church Retreat HEREE

Outreach Sunday$M&EH

Civic Day 2EH

Mission Sunday =&*H

Labour Day £ T &f

Social Justice Sunday #tB8EH

Mandarin 22" Anniversary Bl &= o 17 T — B F
Fire Drill Bp k&2

Pastor Appreciation Month EH# k&5
Thanksgiving &R &S

Stewardship Sunday &% ¥ H

Children Harvest Carnival BB =FES
Mission Sunday =B+ H

Membership Meeting Z& A

Baptism /=48 (Can&, Man)

Baptism =12 (EngZ£)

Christmas Day E23L&n

Boxing Day &8 H
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ONG

To the Executive Church Board and Congregation of Grace Chinese Gospel Church of North York

Independent Auditor's Report

Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF
NORTH YORK (the "Church"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31,
2021, and the statement of funds activities and statement of cash flows for the the year then ended and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of
my report, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Church as at December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

In common with many charitable organizations, the Church derives revenue from donations the
completeness of which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, verification of
these revenues was limited to the amounts recorded in the records of the Church. Therefore, | was not
able to determine whether any adjustments might be necessary to recorded donation receipts, assets
and funds. My audit opinion on the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 was
modified accordingly because of the possible effects of this scope limitation.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Stafements section of my report. | am independent of the Church in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in Canada, and | have
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Church's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Church or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Church’'s financial reporting

2

CMR Weong Chartered Professional Accountant
1200 Speers Road, Unit 12 = Oakville » Ontario LEL 2xX4
Tel: (905) 845-1408 Fax: (905) 845-5931 Toll free 1-866-324-6877



Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, | exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

» QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Church's internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Church’'s ability to continue as a going concern. If |
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Church fo cease to continue as a going
concerm.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that | identify during my audit.

Oakville, Ontario é /Vl K N“?M G

April 5, 2022
CMR Wong Chartered Professional Accountant
Licensed Public Accountant

CMR Wong Chartered Professional Accountant
1200 Speers Road, Unit 12 « Oakyille » Ontario LEL 2X4
Tel: (905) 845-1408 Fax: (905) 845-5031 Toll free 1-866-324-6877



GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31

2021 2020
General Building
Fund Fund
~ ASSETS ~
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents % 447,928 § 342276 $ 790,204 § 396,310
Investment (Note 3) 2,005,000 - 2,005,000 2,005,000
Accounts receivable 58,953 - 58,953 82,397
Prepaid expenses 11,097 - 11,097 14,944
2,522,978 342,276 2,865,254 2,498,651
Property, plant and equipment
at cost less accumulated
amortization (Note 4) 39,521 1,498,668 1,538,189 1,620,545
$ 2562499 § 1,840,944 § 4,403,443 35 4,119,196
~ LIABILITIES -
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and $ $ $ $
accrued liabilities 15,092 - 15,092 8,339
CEBA Loan (Note 6) 30,000 - 30,000 30,000
45,092 - 45,092 38,339
~ DESIGNATED FUNDS -~
General fund 2,517,407 - 2,517,407 2,215,948
Building fund - 1,840,944 1,840,944 1,864,909
2,517,407 1,840,944 4,358,351 4,080,857
$ 2562499 % 1840944 % 4,403,443 § 4,119,196

MNote: The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

.Director

,Director




GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK
STATEMENT OF FUNDS ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

2021 2020
General Building
Fund Fund
Receipts:
Offerings -
General % 994,079 § - $ 994,079 § 902,758
Building - 13,472 13,472 12,470
Special - Food bank (Note 7) 39,807 - 39,807 26,592
Special - Short term mission (Note 8) 27,972 - 27,972 24 448
Other receipts -
Facility usage fee 63,500 80,830 144,330 95,803
Miscellaneous - - - 21,039
Interest income 28.540 - 28,540 3,398
Government subsidy (Note 9) 227177 - 227177 223,597
1,381,075 94,302 1,475,377 1,310,105
Expenditures: (Mote 12) 1,079,616 118,267 1,197,883 1,006,591
Net receipts for the year 301,459 (23,965) 277,494 303,514
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,215,848 1,864,909 4,080,857 3,777,343
Fund balance, end of year $ 2517407 $ 1,840944 % 4,358,351 § 4,080,857

Note: The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

Cash from (to) operation:
Net receipts for the year
Adjustments for non-cash item
Amortization

Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities
CEBA loan

Cash from (to) investing activities:
Investment
Acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Net cash generated (applied) for
the year

Cash and cash equivalent,
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalent,
end of year

Note: The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenits.

3

2021 2020
General Building
Fund Fund
301,459 % (23,965) $ 277,494 303,514
6,382 118,267 124,649 119,836
307,841 94,302 402,143 423,350
23,444 - 23,444 (71,462)
3,847 = 3,847 504
6,753 - 6,753 2,345
- - - 30,000
341,885 94,302 436,187 384,737
. - - (2,005,000)
(42,293) - (42,293) -
(42,293) - (42,293) (2,005,000)
299,592 94,302 393,894 (1,620,263)
148,336 247,974 396,310 2,016,573
447,928 % 342,276 $ 790,204 % 396,310



GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2021

The following notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1. Organization
Grace Chinese Gospel Church of Morth York is a Christian church that promotes the Gospel of Jesus Christ,

provides worship services to Christians.
The Church is registered under the Canada Not-for-Profit Corporations Act. The church is a member of the
Association of Gospel Churches (AGC). The entity is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada),
as such, is exempt from income taxes.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

a)

b)

d)

Revenue -
i. Offerings are accounted for on cash basis. Pledges are not recorded as receipt until the pledged

contributions are received.
ii. Facility usage fees are accounted for revenue when the facility is used for services provided

mainly by other registered charities.

iii. Retreat and EQ fees are accounted for revenue when the fees payment are received for covering
the cost of the service provided by church's ministry.

iv. Government subsidies are due to COVID-19, including the wage and rent subsidies as well as the
forgiveness of the loan.

Fund accounting -

To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the
church, the accounts of the church are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting.
The resources for various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds
established according to their nature and purpose. Transfers between funds are made when approved by
the Board. The assets, liabilities and fund balances of the church are reported in three balancing funds as

i. General fund is for general operating purposes.
ii. Building fund, which represents resources for expansions, and church renovations.

Restricted contributions -

General and Building funds are restricted by donors for particular general operating purposes or for
building expansion and renovation respectively. For the grant received with specified restrictions, such
amounts received will be netted against the specified expenditures incurred during the year, excess
amount of grant received will be recorded as restricted fund.

Donated materials and services -

Contributions, to the extent recognized in the fund accounts, are recorded at an approximation of their fair
market value, the church is dependent upon the ongoing support of volunteers, the value of which has not
been quantified in these financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents -
Cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with original maturities within a year.



GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

f) Property, plant and equipment -
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost commencing in 1998. Amortization is recorded over
the useful life of the assets on the following rates and basis:

Equipment - 30% on a declining balance basis
Building - 4% on a straight line basis
Furniture and fixtures - 20% on a declining balance basis

q) Financial instruments -
The entity's financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities and deferred revenue. Unless otherwise noted, it is the deacon board's
opinion that the entity is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from those
financial instruments. The fair value of these financial instruments approximate their carrying value,

3. Investment

Investments of $2 005,000 (2020 - $2,005,000) consist of a portfolio of Guaranteed Investment Certificates
with maturity dates ranging from April 2022 to December 2023 and interest rates from 0.4% to 1.5%

4. Property, plant and eguipment

2021 2020
Accumulated MNet book Met book
Cost Amortization Value Value
Building 5 2938067 % 1442015 § 1,496,052 % 1,613,574
Equipment 168,083 145,718 22,365 3,185
Furniture and fixtures 86,639 66,867 19,772 3,776

3 3,192,789 $ 1,654,600 $ 1,538,189 % 1,620,545

5. Financial instruments
The church is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a comprehensive risk
management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks. It is the deacon board's opinion that
the church is not exposed to significant currency risk. The following analysis provides information about the
church's risk exposure and concentration as of December 31, 2021.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The church is
subject to credit risk through receivable. The church's management does not expect any financial loss on the
December 31, 2021 receivable balance.

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities. The church is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its receipt of funds from its members and
other related sources and accounts payable and accrued liabilities.



GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEBER 31. 2021

Financial instruments

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
change in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk. It is management’'s opinion that the church is not exposed to significant current rate risk and
other price risk. The church is mainly exposed to interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change in
the interest rates. In seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations, the church manages
exposure through its normal operating and financing. activities. The church is exposed to interest rate risk
primarily through its fixed interest rate on cash and cash equivalents. The church manages this risk through
investing in fixed-rate deposits and plans to hold the deposits to maturity.

Bank loan
Due to COVID-19, the church has applied the CEBA interest free loan and the repayment deadline is due
before December 31, 2023.

Food Bank Ministry

Total designated offering for food bank received during the year was $39,807 (2020 - $26,592) and the total
expense for food bank was $23,366 (2020 - $11,162). There is cash blalance of $65,106 (2020 - $48,665)
designated for the ministry of food bank as at Dec 31, 2021.

Short Term Mission

Total designated offering for short term mission received during the year was $27,972 (2020 - $24,448) and
the total expense for short term mission was $nil (2020 - $91). There is cash balance of $123,177 (2020 -
$85,205) designated for the ministry of short term mission as at Dec 31, 2021.

Government Subsidies

The government subsidies consists of CSJ grant, wage and rent subsidy due to COVID-19 for a total of
227177 (2020 - §223,597)

10. Comparative figures

1.

Certain comparative prior year's figures have been reclassified to conform to current year's presentation.

Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved by the Executive Board and authorized for issue on April 5, 2022,




GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

2021 2020
12. Expenditures

a) General Fund
Administration 3 20120 3 12,743
Association dues 8,000 8,000
Building 92,188 122,534
Cantonese ministry 6,555 4 958
Cantonese worship and Sunday School 926 2,670
Children ministry 1,274 1,087
Children worship and Sunday School 3,876 3,089
Contingency 1,000 1,114
English ministry 4 66T 4,186
English worship and Sunday School 1,830 1,382
Finance 5,700 3,429
Mandarin ministry 7,383 13,942
Mandarin worship and Sunday School 1,882 2,869
Mission 74,429 72420
Short term mission (Mote 8) - 91
Mon-refundable GST 5,485 4612
Salaries and benefits 805,216 606,878
Social concern ministry - 671
Food bank (Note 7) 23,366 11,162
Special events 1,017 2,568
Theological student assistance 8,200 6,350
Amortization 6,382 1,344
5 1,079,616 $ 888,099

b) Building Fund
Amortization ] 118,267 § 118,492
TOTAL b 1,197,883 § 1,006,591



